
To: All Members of the Council  
GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Subject to the Committee being re-constituted and members being re-appointed, a 
meeting of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee will be held at Bromley 
Civic Centre on THURSDAY 16 MAY 2019 AT 7.00 PM 

MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
 http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

A G E N D A
1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3  QUESTIONS 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to the Chairman of this 
Committee must be submitted in writing to the Democratic Services contact officer 
before the meeting.

General questions about the Committee’s work and responsibilities must be submitted 
by 5pm on Wednesday 1st May 2019. 

Questions which are specifically about reports on this agenda may be accepted until 
5pm on Friday 10th May 2019.

4   CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 MARCH 2019 
(Pages 5 - 10)

5   ELECTORAL REVIEW 
(Pages 11 - 74)

6   LOCAL PENSION BOARD - APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS (PART 1) 
(Pages 75 - 78)

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333 CONTACT: Graham Walton
graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

DIRECT LINE: 0208 461 7743
FAX: 020 8290 0608 DATE: 8 May 2019

http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/


7   APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 
(Pages 79 - 86)

8   WORK PROGRAMME AND MATTERS OUTSTANDING 
(Pages 87 - 92)

9   AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26TH 
FEBRUARY 2019, EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION 
(Pages 93 - 104)

10   PENSIONS INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 
ON 5 MARCH 2019, EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION 
(Pages 105 - 114)

11   APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25TH 
MARCH 2019, EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION 
(Pages 115 - 116)

12 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM 
OF INFORMATION ACT 2000 

The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of 
the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.
Items of Business Schedule 12A Description

13  LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 
APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS 
(PART 2) 
(Pages 117 - 124)

Information relating to any individual. 

14  AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: EXEMPT 
MINUTES - 26TH FEBRUARY 2019 
(Pages 125 - 126)

Information relating to any action taken 
or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution 
of crime. 

15  PENSIONS INVESTMENT SUB-
COMMITTEE: EXEMPT MINUTES - 5 
MARCH 2019 
(Pages 127 - 132)

Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding 
that information) 

16  APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE: EXEMPT 
MINUTES - 25TH MARCH 2019 
(Pages 133 - 134)

Information relating to any individual. 



1

GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 19 March 2019

Present:

Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe (Chairman)
Councillor Michael Turner (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Marina Ahmad, Gareth Allatt, 
Nicholas Bennett J.P., Mary Cooke, Robert Evans, 
Josh King, Russell Mellor, Alexa Michael, 
Neil Reddin FCCA, Melanie Stevens, Harry Stranger and 
Stephen Wells

Also Present:

Councillor Graham Arthur, Councillor Julian Benington and 
Councillor Nicky Dykes

90  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Vanessa Allen (who was 
replaced by Councillor Josh King) and Councillor Tony Owen.

91  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Robert Evans declared an interest as a trustee of Mytime Active in 
relation to agenda item 11 - the minutes of the meeting held on 12th February 
2019.

92  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING 
THE MEETING

No questions had been received.

93  CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
12TH FEBRUARY 2019

In relation to minute 78, the Chairman reported that the playgroup established 
by Cllr Dykes and Cllr Cuthbert was going well, and she hoped to visit it 
shortly.

The Labour group requested that their intention to give the increase to charity 
be noted in the minutes. 

RESOLVED that, subject to the amendment proposed above, the 
minutes of the meeting held on 12th February 2019 (excluding exempt 
information) be confirmed.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



General Purposes and Licensing Committee
19 March 2019

2

94  CHILDCARE LOAN DEPOSIT SCHEME

The Committee received a report proposing the introduction of a Childcare 
Deposit Loan Scheme which would enable Council employees access to an 
interest free loan of up to £2,000 (similar to a season ticket loan for travel) to 
cover the upfront costs of Ofsted registered childcare. This would be an 
additional optional benefit to employees and would be part of an overall 
package of benefits available to recruit and retain staff, especially those in 
hard to fill occupations. The scheme would also support parents back into 
work and would therefore support the Council’s equality objective.

In response to Members’ questions, it was confirmed that the underlying data 
about mothers and employment was from the GLA. Employees could 
potentially have more than one loan - there were no tax implications as long 
as the loans did not exceed £10k. However, the Council also had to bear in 
mind the employee’s ability to repay the loans. 

Councillor Nicky Dykes had championed the scheme, and attended the 
meeting to support its adoption. She thanked the Resources, Commissioning 
and Contract Management Portfolio Holder Cllr Graham Arthur and the 
officers for their work in developing the scheme.

The Chairman commented that, with only a very small number of authorities 
providing such a scheme, it was good to see Bromley leading the way in 
supporting staff.

RESOLVED that the introduction of a Childcare Deposit Loan Scheme be 
approved.

95  CONSTITUTION IMPROVEMENT WORKING GROUP - MINOR 
CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGES
Report CSD19053

The Constitution Improvement Working Group at its meeting on 21st January 
2019 had made a number of recommendations to amend the Council’s 
Constitution, including, in particular, changes to the arrangements for 
questions. A Member did suggest that the proposed new deadline of 10 
working days before the meeting for receipt of questions was too early, but it 
was emphasised that the Working Group’s proposal was that questions 
specifically on reports on each agenda could be submitted much later - before 
5pm on the second working day after the final day on which the agenda had 
to be published. The existing provision for emergency questions would 
remain.

The Working Group had considered a request from the LJCC that 
consideration be given to making a “matters arising” or “matters outstanding” 
report a compulsory requirement on every agenda and had decided that this 
was not necessary. Councillor Nicholas Bennett stated that the Working 
Group had considered this at previous meetings and decided that all meetings 

Page 4



General Purposes and Licensing Committee
19 March 2019

3

should have a matters outstanding report and that he was disappointed that 
some meetings did not do this. Committee members broadly supported this 
approach.

A Member commented that in his view it was regrettable that Development 
Control Committee had reverted to a 7.30pm start time rather than the 
standard time of 7pm. The Chairman of the Development Control Committee 
explained that the later start time made it easier for a number of Members 
who were at work during the day to arrive in time and attend pre-meetings. 
The clerk confirmed that the standard start time for meetings was indeed 7pm 
but there remained some flexibility where meetings needed to start at different 
times.

The report was also being submitted to the Executive on 27th March 2019 
before final decisions would be taken by full Council on 8th April 2019. 

RESOLVED that 

(1) Council be recommended to approve the following changes to the 
Constitution, as proposed by the Constitution Improvement Working 
Group and as set out in Appendix to the report -

 (A) That the following changes to Council Procedure Rules relating 
to questions be approved - 

  that public question time be extended to a maximum of 30 
minutes, in line with the time allowed for Councillor 
questions;

  the deadline for receipt of questions should be 5pm, ten 
working days before each meeting;

  that questions specifically on reports on each agenda should 
be allowed within two working days of the normal publication 
date of the agenda;

  that questions be taken at special meetings, but only on the 
reports on the agenda;

   members of the public should no longer read their questions 
at Council meetings;

 the number of questions allowed be restricted to two per 
person.   

(The changes to be reviewed after six months of operation.)

(B) That Executive members should not sit on the Audit Sub-
Committee.

(C) That the right for a single Councillor to request that an item be 
placed on an agenda be extended from PDS Committees to all 
other committees.   

Page 5



General Purposes and Licensing Committee
19 March 2019

4

(D) That the Scheme of Delegation to Officers be altered to 
confirm that where a planning issue is called in by a ward 
Councillor the delegation to officers is withdrawn.

(2)  That the other matters considered by Constitution Improvement 
Working Group (paragraph 6 of the report) be noted.

(3)  That the Executive and Council be recommended to include in the 
Constitution a requirement that all Committees and Sub-
committees have a “matters outstanding” report on their agendas.

96  APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
Report CSD19056

The Committee noted that Councillor Peter Fortune had stepped down from 
two outside body appointments. The majority group had nominated Councillor 
Stephen Wells to represent the Council on the Nash College Education 
Governing Body, and Councillor Robert Evans to join the Diocese of 
Rochester Board of Education.  

RESOLVED that 

(1) Councillor Stephen Wells be appointed to the Nash College 
Education Governing Body for the remainder of the four year term of 
office ending January 2023.

(2) Councillor Robert Evans be appointed to the Diocese of Rochester 
Board of Education for the remainder of the three year term of office 
ending December 2021.  

97  WORK PROGRAMME
Report CSD19052

The Committee considered its work programme for 2019/20.

98  LOCAL JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF 
THE MEETING HELD ON 9TH JANUARY 2019

The draft minutes of the Local Joint Consultative Committee meeting held on 
9th January 2019 be confirmed.

99  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the item of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings 

Page 6



General Purposes and Licensing Committee
19 March 2019

5

that if members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information.

The following summary
refers to matters involving exempt information

100  EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12TH 
FEBRUARY 2019

RESOLVED that the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 12th 
February 2019 be confirmed.

The Meeting ended at 7.22 pm

Chairman

Page 7



This page is left intentionally blank



 1

Report No.
CSD19078

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
EXECUTIVE
COUNCIL

Date: 16/21/22 May 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: ELECTORAL REVIEW

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: All

1. Reason for report

1.1    The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) is undertaking a review of 
Bromley’s electoral arrangements, which have been in place since the last review in 1999. The 
first stage of the Review is for the Commission to determine the overall number of Councillors to 
be elected for the borough in future, before moving on to consider the detail of ward boundaries 
and the number of councillors representing each ward. As part of this preliminary stage, the 
Commission has invited the Council and any other interested parties to make submissions on 
Council size before the end of May 2019.    

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION

That General Purposes and Licensing Committee and the Executive approve the draft 
Electoral Review Council Size Submission for consideration by full Council. 

That Council approves the Council Size Submission.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost: 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable: 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services

4. Total current budget for this head: £350,650     

5. Source of funding: 2019/20 Revenue Budget
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  Not Applicable 
  

2.      If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:  Not Applicable 
  
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  Decision to be made by full Council
________________________________________________________________________________

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  Not Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Electorate of the borough
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

2. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable 

3. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not Applicable

Page 10



 3

3. COMMENTARY

3.1   The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) is currently focussed on 
ensuring that all Councils in London have had a recent review of their electoral arrangements. 
Bromley’s arrangements were last reviewed in 1999, with the outcome implemented in the 2002 
local elections. In conducting this review, the LGBCE will apply three statutory criteria -

(i) electoral equality (a consistent number of electors per councillor); 

(ii) community identity (strong ward boundaries that reflect communities); and 

(iii) effective and convenient local government (coherent wards with good internal transport 
links). 

3.2   The first stage of the Review is for the Commission to determine the overall number of 
Councillors to be elected for the borough in future. The LGBCE has outlined three areas that it 
will focus on -

(i) the Council’s governance arrangements and how it takes decisions across the broad 
range of its functions;

(ii) the Council’s scrutiny functions relating to its own decisions and its responsibilities to 
other bodies; and 

(iii) the representational role of councillors in the local community and how they engage with 
people, conduct casework and represent the council on local partner organisations.

As part of this preliminary stage, the Commission has invited the Council and any other 
interested parties to make submissions on Council size before the end of May 2019.    

3.3    The draft text of the Council’s size submission is attached at Appendix A. This sets out a 
conclusion that the Council size is broadly correct, but that, given that the Council is already 
towards the higher end of the elector/councillor ratio, a modest increase to 62 councillors is 
appropriate. This will enable the Council size to remain sustainable over the next twenty years 
given the projected increases in population and electorate, and the increasing demands on 
councillors.  

3.4   The Commission is intending to make a decision on Council size on 18th June 2019. This will be 
followed by a period of public consultation on the warding pattern over the summer months 
leading towards the formulation of draft recommendations in October 2019. There will then be 
further public consultation on the draft recommendations before final recommendations are due 
to be announced in February 2020. The new arrangements will be implemented for the 2022 
local elections.  

  

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children/Policy/Finance/
Personnel/Legal/Procurement

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

Electoral Review of the London Borough of Bromley - a 
guide for Councillors - LGBCE

Page 11



This page is left intentionally blank



ELECTORAL REVIEW OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY

Submission on Bromley Council Size

1. Introduction 

2. Summary and recommendations 

3. Characteristics of Bromley and Comparative Information 

4. Governance and Decision Making 

5. Conclusion

Appendices 
A. Tables
B. Structure Chart (2018/19)
C. Executive Assistants Annual Report (2018/19)
D. E Annual Scrutiny Report (2018/19)
E. List of Outside Bodies (2018/19)
F. Committee meeting number summary (2017/8 & 2018/19)
G. Councillor attendance summary (2017/18)
H. Analysis Borough Electorate Totals for January 2019 Register

Page 13



2

1. Introduction – background to the review

1.1.The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) is 
undertaking a review of the London Borough of Bromley`s electoral 
arrangements. This will be the first review of the ward boundaries in the 
Borough since 1999 and it forms a part of a review of arrangements across 
London. 

1.2.The review examines and proposes new electoral arrangements for the whole 
local authority, and will take decisions upon: 

• The total number of councillors to be elected to the council (Council Size) 
• The names, numbers and boundaries of wards 
• The number of councillors to be elected to represent each ward. 

1.3 The statutory criteria that the LGBCE will apply when making its proposals and 
decisions are: 

• Electoral equality (a consistent number of electors per councillor) 
• Community identity (strong ward boundaries that reflect communities) 
• Effective and convenient local government (coherent wards with good 

internal transport links). 

1.4 The outcome of the review will be implemented in time to take effect at the 
Local government Elections for the Borough scheduled for May 2022. The 
Review will aim to ensure that its recommendations remain relevant for the long 
term. 

1.5 The first stage of the review is to determine the future council size. The 
provisional decision on council size by the Commission will then inform the next 
stage of the review, which will consider size and numbers of wards, ward 
boundaries and the number of councillors to represent each ward. 

1.6 The Commission will form its view about the right council size for an authority 
by considering the following areas: 

• The governance arrangements of the council and how it takes decisions 
across the broad range of its responsibilities 

• The council’s scrutiny functions relating to its own decision making and the 
council’s responsibilities to outside bodies 

• The representational role of councillors in the local community and how they 
engage with people conduct casework and represent the council on local 
partner organisations. 

• A view on how  the role and operation of the Council has changed since 
1999 and the new and different challenges faced by elected members

Page 14



3

2. Summary and recommendations

2.1 The council has carefully considered the various factors outlined in the 
Boundary Commission’s guidance documents and has evaluated the impact 
of increasing or decreasing the current number of councillors. 

2.2 Bromley`s electorate as at January 2019 was 242,189 (excluding overseas 
electors) and this equates to an electoral ratio of 4,036 electors for each 
councillor. The electorate is forecast to grow to 265,038 by 2022 and equate 
to an electorate ratio of 4,417 electors per councillor. Forward projecting 
twenty years to 2039 would give a projected electorate of 294,698 and an 
electorate ratio of 4,912 electors per councillor 

2.3 This increase in the number of electors up to 2022 has been forecasted 
utilising the Local Government Boundary Commission’s preferred forecasting 
methodology, the Greater London Authority’s (GLA) population growth 
forecasts and also takes into account planned housing development, as well 
as planned and statutory activities to ensure that the borough’s register of 
electors is as complete and accurate as possible.

2.4 Bromley is a well-run and effective council, with good engagement by 
members who play a full and active role as local representatives. We have 
strong governance and scrutiny and members are central to delivering this 
good governance. In coming to its recommendation, the council 
acknowledges that the current administration have stated that the existing 
governance arrangements (the Strong Leader model) will remain as they are 
working well. 

2.5. The council considers 62 to be the optimum number of councillors required to 
ensure effective governance and scrutiny for the authority. Based upon the 
current electorate this number also offers a more beneficial electoral ratio that 
enables councillors to offer fair and effective representation to their ward 
constituents 

2.6 An increase to 62 Members would maintain the level of representation for 
electors and residents as the population grows, and ensure that work on 
scrutiny and other areas is not damaged.

2.7. Although members are busy and work hard to deliver in their roles, the 
council has shown it works effectively with 60 members at present 
electorate/population levels. Reducing the number of councillors would put an 
unacceptable pressure on the workload both in ensuring the delivery of the 
Councillor role under the current governance arrangements and in their 
broader community role. 

Page 15



4

2.8 A decrease in the number of councillors could save some money, however 
this would increase the number of electors and residents per councillor to an 
unacceptably challenging level This increase would make it difficult for 
members to effectively represent the needs and views of their communities. A 
reduction of councillors to even 55, which would deliver minimal savings, 
would see each elected member representing almost 4,819 electors by 2022 
and 5,358 by 2039.

2.9 Since 2010 fewer than 10 opposition Councillors have been returned in each 
election (2010 - 7, 2014 – 9, 2018 - 9). There is a material risk that a reduction 
in the number of Councillors will have an impact on the number of opposition 
councillors returned which will have an impact on voter choice and the 
effectiveness of political opposition on the Council.

Recommendation

That the number of Members elected at Local Government Elections in 
Bromley is increased from 60 to 62.

3 Characteristics of Bromley and Comparative Information

3.1  Located in South East London Bromley serves a population of c331,000.
It is the largest London borough. At approximately 150 square kilometres it is 
30% larger than the next largest borough.

3.2 The Council is responsible of the full range of Local Government services 
since the abolition of the GLC in 1986 (the Mayor and GLA being an additional 
rather than a substitute service). Although Bromley is a relatively prosperous 
area, the communities within Bromley differ substantially. The North-East and 
North-West of the borough contend with similar issues (such as higher levels 
of deprivation and disease prevalence) to those found in the inner London 
Boroughs we border (Lambeth, Lewisham, Southwark, Greenwich), while in 
the South, the borough compares more with rural Kent and its issues.

3.3. Table 1 of appendix A sets out the present electoral figures by ward in 
Bromley and Table 2 of appendix A compares both the area and member 
representation at Bromley with other London Boroughs.   Table 3 breaks the 
figures down by polling directives.    Table 4 sets out the projected electorate 
increase by ward.  

3.4 Appendices set out the projected population and electorate increases for 
Bromley, with the supporting methodology being at Appendix H.

Page 16



5

3.4 Of the next 4 largest London Boroughs in size then membership is as follows:-

 Hillingdon 65
 Havering 54
 Croydon 70
 Barnet 63

All of the above have a lower elector to Councillor ratio when compared to the 
Elector/Councillor ratio at Bromley. 

Havering does have fewer councillors. However it is 47,000 Hectares smaller 
in area, has a smaller electorate by c38,000 electors and a present ratio of 
3,541 electors per councillor compared to a ratio of 4,023 electors per  
councillor  at Bromley.

3.5 Consideration of the figures set out in Table 2 indicates that even after 
reductions to the number of members elsewhere, the ratio of electors per 
councillor is still higher at Bromley .Authorities with comparable electorates 
tend to have  more elected members than Bromley. 

4 Governance and Decision Making 

4.1 The London Borough of Bromley is made up from 22 wards comprising 60 
councillors. There is 1 single member ward, 4 two member wards and 17 
three member wards. Following the 2018 local elections, the political balance 
of the Council is currently 50 Conservatives, 8 Labour and 2 independents.  
The Council holds around 200 meetings each year, most of them held in 
public. A chart setting out the basic meeting structure is at Appendix B.

Full Council

4.2 Full Council is chaired by the Mayor.  All Councillors serve on full Council 
meetings. It meets around 7 times a year, including an annual meeting in May 
at which appointments to Committees are made. Certain matters have to be 
considered by full Council, including setting the Council’s annual budget and 
Council Tax, which is done at a meeting in February. As well as receiving 
reports for decision or information, the full Council meeting is a major focus for 
public engagement and political debate, with time allotted to dealing with 
questions from Councillors and members of the public, receiving public 
petitions and considering motions proposed by Councillors.  

Page 17



6

Executive Arrangements

4.3 The Council operates a “strong leader” executive model. The Leader is 
appointed by full Council at the first annual meeting after the local elections, 
and remains in office for the four-year period until the next elections. The 
Leader appoints six other Members to his Executive as Portfolio Holders, one 
of whom is appointed Deputy Leader, each with specific areas of 
responsibility. The portfolios are currently -

• Adult Care and Health 
• Children, Education and Families (and Deputy Leader)
• Environment and Community Services
• Public Protection and Enforcement 
• Renewal, Recreation and Housing
• Resources, Commissioning and Contract Management 

4.4 Portfolio Holders provide political direction and leadership for the Council 
services within their portfolios, working closely with Directors and other senior 
managers. They help the Leader to set the strategic direction of the Council, 
promote initiatives and challenge officers on budget management, savings, 
income generation and service improvement. The Leader/Portfolio Holders 
appoint up to six Executive Assistants to provide support to Portfolio Holders. 
Executive Assistants are not formal deputies and cannot exercise executive 
authority. They are required to submit an annual report summarising their 
activity - the 2018/19 report is attached as Appendix C

4.5 The Executive has about 8 scheduled meetings a year to take decisions, but 
usually a number of special meetings are also necessary to deal with urgent 
matters. Individual Portfolio Holders take decisions following pre-decision 
scrutiny of reports at a Policy Development and Scrutiny (PDS) meeting, or 
occasionally at a special Portfolio Holder meeting or following circulation of a 
proposed decision to all other Councillors. 

4.6 The maximum size of Executive permitted by law is The Leader plus 9 other 
members and with an with an executive of 7 in total Bromley already has one 
of the more streamlined Executive bodies in London.

Regulatory functions                

4.7 There are a range of functions which the law says cannot be exercised by the 
executive. In addition, there are some functions where the Council has a 
choice whether they are executive or non-executive, and Bromley has decided 
that these will be treated as non-executive. 

4.8 These non-executive functions require a range of committees and sub-
committees to be set up to make decisions. The major committees are the 
Development Control Committee and its 4 Plans Sub-Committees, and the 

Page 18



7

General Purposes and Licensing Committee, which has sub-committees for 
Appeals, Audit, Industrial Relations, Licensing, Pensions Investment and 
Rights of Way. The Local Joint Consultative Panel (a forum for discussion 
between councillors and officers) also reports to the General Purposes and 
Licensing Committee. In addition, the Council has chosen to retain a 
Standards Committee, which considers matters relating to the conduct of 
councillors.  

Planning Committees

4.9 Development Control Committee is a large committee with 17 members which 
considers matters of planning policy, and also determines major planning 
applications. Some of these meetings attract large numbers of members of 
the public where a particularly controversial planning application is being 
considered. The four Plans Sub-Committees meet every fortnight in turn to 
determine planning applications. This amounts to about twenty-five meetings 
a year, and is a substantial workload for Councillors. These meetings always 
attract members of the public, who can address the sub-committee with their 
concerns. One person is allowed to speak in favour of each application and 
one against before Councillors discuss the case and come to a decision. 
There are 36 seats overall on these four  sub-committees, although some 
Councillors will sit on two sub-committees, reducing the number of Councillors 
needed. 

Licensing Committees 

4.10 Licensing of the sale of alcohol and public entertainment are the 
responsibility of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee. Licensing 
Sub-Committees of 3 members are appointed to hear licensing applications. 
These meetings can be lengthy, with substantial paperwork to consider and 
applicants represented by lawyers. Although the number of Licensing Sub-
Committee meetings has declined in recent years, there are still about eight 
needed every year. Members of the Licensing Sub-committees are drawn 
from the 15 members of the General Purposes and Licencing committee and 
this level ensures an expert and informed group of members can   take 
licensing decisions whilst avoiding risks around conflict of interest.

Policy Development and Scrutiny 

4.11 The Council is under a statutory duty to appoint at least one overview and 
scrutiny committee. Bromley’s lead scrutiny committee is the Executive, 
Resources and Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny (PDS) Committee. 
This PDS Committee has an over-arching, coordinating role on behalf of the 
other five PDS Committees for Adult Care and Health, Education, Children 
and Families, Environment and Community Services, Public Protection and 
Safety and Renewal, Recreation and Housing.  In addition, there are sub-

Page 19



8

committees for Health Scrutiny and Education, Children and Families Budget 
and Performance Monitoring. Ad hoc scrutiny reviews are undertaken form 
time to time.

4.12 Scrutiny is an important part of the Council’s governance arrangements 
under the Local Government Act 2000. Although scrutiny committees have no 
decision making powers, they hold the Executive and individual executive 
portfolio holders to account, examine executive decisions and propose new 
policies. Most non-executive councillors sit on at least one of the PDS 
committees. 

4.13 In recent years a key element of the work of scrutiny has been to undertake 
pre-decision scrutiny of decisions by the Executive and individual Portfolio 
Holders. This enhances democratic accountability and ensures that maters 
which impact on the council membership, as a whole and the electorate can 
be input into the decision making process at an early stage which supports 
transparency and the democratic process and ensures that executive 
councillors are accountable for the decisions that they make. 

4.14 PDS Committees have broad scope to scrutinise beyond the boundaries of 
Council services, particularly in areas such as health and public protection. 
Two councillors from Bromley sit on a joint health overview and scrutiny 
committee covering all of South East London. This ability to scrutinise partner 
organisations is crucial at a time when more and more services are delivered 
through partnerships. 

4.15 PDS Committees are each scheduled to meet at least 5 times a year, but 
beyond these formal meetings, many councillors carry out additional work 
such as attending visits or presentations, carrying out research and attending 
working group meetings.  A reduction in the number of councillors would have 
a particular effect on the ability of councillors to carry out scrutiny effectively.  

4.16 An Annual Scrutiny Report is published summarising scrutiny activity - the 
2018/19 report is attached at Appendix C.

Outside Bodies

4.17 Councillors are appointed by the General Purposes and Licensing 
Committee to serve on a range of “outside bodies” - local or regional 
organisations and charities. Most Executive members attend meetings of 
London Councils relating to their specific portfolio responsibilities. Some of 
these positions with the more local charities may be filled by members of the 
public, but some 60 to 70 roles are allocated to Councillors. The amount of 
work involved may vary, but most roles involve attendance at several 
meetings a year, sometimes outside the borough. A list of outside body 
appointments is attached as Appendix D.

Page 20



9

Delegation of Functions 

4.18 The Council’s Scheme of Delegation to Officers sets out in detail those 
matters which have been delegated to senior officers either by the Leader 
(executive matters) or by the Council and its committees (non-executive 
matters.)

Role of the Mayor

4.19 The Mayor is chosen annually by the full Council and is chairman of full 
Council meetings. The Mayor chooses a Deputy Mayor to assist them during 
their year in office. 

4.20 The Mayor represents the Queen and is the “first citizen” of the borough. He 
or she is the ceremonial representative of the Council. The Mayor represents 
the Council at civic functions and undertakes fundraising activities on behalf of 
their chosen charity or charities. Other than chairing full Council meetings the 
Mayor does not participate in the Council’s decision making and is expected 
to be politically impartial during their year in office.   

4.22 The mayoral function is widely respected and of great significance to the 
residents of Bromley. In recent years some Mayors and their deputies have 
attended over 900 Civic functions and events. It is unusual for less than 450 
functions/events to be carried out in a Mayoral Year.

Roles of Councillors 

4.23 Councillors perform a number of roles, which can be summarised in terms of 
their responsibilities (i) to represent the residents in their wards, (ii) to serve 
the borough as a whole, and (iii) to serve in particular roles. 

4.24 Bromley is a large and diverse borough, with some wards having a very 
urban, inner city atmosphere, some being suburban in character and some 
containing large tracts of green belt and open countryside. Bromley 
Councillors set a very high value on representing the interests of their wards, 
and the residents and businesses in them. The amount and nature of 
casework for ward councillors can vary substantially, and there are pockets of 
deprivation which place an additional burden on some ward councillors. 

4.25 All Councillors are more accessible than ever due to the impact of electronic 
communication and social media, with greater demands placed on them to 
respond immediately and provide instant solutions. As the borough’s 
population increases it is likely that these demands will also increase. In some 
wards, Councillors continue to hold surgeries or are available at prominent 
locations in their wards to meet with their residents, but an increasing amount 

Page 21



10

of casework is now conducted by email. All councillors are offered a choice of 
computer and telephone equipment to use for their Council work. 

4.26 All councillors are expected to contribute to the Council’s strategic work by 
attending full Council meetings and (with the exception of the Mayor) a range 
of committees, sub-committees and other meetings.  In addition, they will 
probably be attending a range of pre-meetings, party group meetings, 
residents’ group meetings in their ward and other meetings.  A list of numbers 
of meetings held in 2016/17 and 2017/18 is attached at Appendix E, with a 
summary of councillor attendance for 2017/18 at Appendix F.  There are no 
plans to make any substantial changes to the current Executive and 
Committee arrangements.

4.27 More than half of councillors have a particular role as an executive Portfolio 
Holder, Chairman or Vice-Chairman. Some of these roles will involve 
investment of considerable amounts of time, outside the specific formal 
meetings. 32 councillors receive special responsibility allowances for carrying 
out particular roles; 36 councillors receive a “quasi-judicial” allowance for 
serving on a Plans Sub-Committee, a Licensing Sub-Committee or the 
Fostering and Adoption Panel. 

Conclusions 

4.28 The role of the Councillor has become more complex and demanding, with a 
higher public profile and greater expectations from the public. The current 
governance arrangements for the Council are based on a compliment of 60 
However it is likely to be less sustainable as the electorate and population 
grow and a modest increase from 60 to 62 elected councillors will have 
minimal additional cost whilst ensuring that Councillors can fulfil their 
representational and democratic roles and responsibilities.

Page 22



11

Appendix A

Table 1

Page 23



12

Table 2

Page 24



13

Table 3

Page 25



14

Page 26



15

Page 27



16

Page 28



17

Table 4

Ward Code Ward 2019 2024 Change 2019 to 2014

E05000106 Bickley 12,432 12,620 188

E05000107 Biggin Hill 8,317 8,428 111

E05000108 Bromley Common and Keston 13,282 13,315 33

E05000109 Bromley Town 15,056 17,013 1,957

E05000110 Chelsfield and Pratts Bottom 11,810 11,864 54

E05000111 Chislehurst 12,902 12,950 48

E05000112 Clock House 13,016 13,045 29

E05000113 Copers Cope 14,268 14,350 81

E05000114 Cray Valley East 12,330 12,340 10

E05000115 Cray Valley West 13,155 13,501 346

E05000116 Crystal Palace 11,076 11,460 384

E05000117 Darwin 4,247 4,250 3

E05000118 Farnborough and Crofton 12,034 12,223 190

E05000119 Hayes and Coney Hall 12,929 13,067 137

E05000120 Kelsey and Eden Park 13,164 13,270 106

E05000121 Mottingham and Chislehurst North 7,904 7,970 66

E05000122 Orpington 12,805 13,121 317

E05000123 Penge and Cator 14,105 14,128 22

E05000124 Petts Wood and Knoll 11,374 11,486 112

E05000125 Plaistow and Sundridge 12,527 12,572 45

E05000126 Shortlands 8,161 8,230 69

E05000127 West Wickham 12,067 12,188 121

Page 29



18

Appendix B

Council Structure 

FULL COUNCIL

(60 Members)

Agrees designated plans and Budget

 

Appendix C

STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE

Responsible for standards 
and probity. 

EXECUTIVE

Leader and 6 
portfolio holders for –

 Adult Care & 
Health

 Children, 
Education & 
Families

 Environment & 
Community 

 Public Protection 
& Enforcement

 Renewal, 
Recreation & 
Housing 

 Resources, 
Commissioning 
& Contracts  

POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT 

& SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES

Executive, 
Resources & 
Contracts PDS 
Cttee 

(15 members)

(Co-ordinates PDS 
and its annual work 
programme, 
manages call-in and 
scrutinises the 
Resources Portfolio)

5 Portfolio PDS 
Committees - 

 Adult Care & 
Health

 Education, 
Children & 
Families Select 
Cttee

 Environment & 
Community 

 Public Protection 
& Enforcement

 Renewal, 
Recreation & 
Housing 

 Resources, 
Commissioning 
& Contracts  

(9 members)

GENERAL PURPOSES & 
LICENSING COMMITTEE

(15 members)

Responsible for –

 electoral issues
 by-laws
 pension scheme
 staffing matters
 probity strategy (including 

Standing Orders, 
Financial Regulations, 
Complaints Procedures 
and Audit)

Sub-committees for Appeals, 
Audit, Industrial Relations, 
Licensing, Pensions 
Investment and Rights of 
Way) 

DEVELOPMENT 
CONTROL 

COMMITTEE

(17 members)

Responsible for –

 Strategic planning 
issues and major 
planning applications 

 All other planning 
applications normally 
dealt with at Plans 
Sub-Cttees (Nos. 1-
4).

HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD URGENCY COMMITTEE

PARTNERS

Page 30



19

Reports from Executive Assistants, 2018/19

Cllr Angela Page,
Executive Assistant to the Adult Care & Health Portfolio Holder 

This is my second year in the position of Executive Assistant to the Portfolio 
Holder for Adult Care & Health, Cllr Diane Smith.

 My main focus continues to be the monitoring of the work of the Contract 
Compliance and Monitoring team.  Following the changes that were 
implemented previously, I have now worked with officers in the development of 
a Dashboard as a departmental management tool which enables a quick 
reference to care homes used in the Borough and is used to update the 
Portfolio Holder on a regular basis.  A version of the Dashboard to support the 
domiciliary care framework monitoring is now in the process of being 
developed.

At the beginning of each month the Contract Compliance and Monitoring team 
supply a set of spreadsheets which set out comprehensive details of which 
monitoring visits have been undertaken and are planned and now also provide 
a dialogue for each individual provider, an update I asked to be added.  These 
reports cover not just care homes and domiciliary care services but also extra 
care housing and learning disability & mental health facilities.

The Portfolio Holder previously accompanied contract visits but this has now 
been delegated to me as part of the overall task of monitoring and working with 
the department.

Additionally, I receive a weekly report from the CQC setting out which 
inspection reports are published.  If appropriate I follow up with the contracts 
monitoring team to establish what actions (if any) need to be taken.

I have also taken on the responsibility for monitoring the responses to 
complaints received directly to the complaints team in respect of Adult Care 
Services.  I receive a weekly update on the outstanding complaints and I also 
meet with the Head of Service for Customer Engagement and Complaints on a 
regular basis to discuss individual complaints and get a general overview.

As well as the specific projects mentioned above, each month I also attend at 
least two of the weekly meetings that the Portfolio Holder has with the Interim 
Chief Executive and senior departmental officers.  

Throughout the year I have attended a number of visits with the Portfolio 
Holder.

Page 31



20

In February we visited two Adult Day Care Centres – The Saxon Centre in 
Orpington and Bertha James in Bromley.  At each we met with members of the 
boards as well as interacting with the residents visiting the centres.

During the year we have also visited a number of Extra Care Housing 
providers. In March we visited Apsley Court in St Mary Cray. In August we 
visited Norton Court and Sutherland Court in Beckenham. In September we 
visited Regency Court and Crown Meadow Court on Bromley Common. On 
each of these visits we speak with staff and residents to get feedback on the 
care being given and received.

I also joined the Portfolio Holder in a walkabout in July in the Adult Care 
departments where we spent time talking to the staff.

I also took part in the general visits arranged for councillors to the Florence 
House Nursing Home in Bromley and to Bromley Healthcare where we were all 
given a presentation on their work as well as meeting staff.

In April, I was invited in my role of Executive Assistant to visit the Beechmore 
Court Care Home in Bickley to view the facilities on offer and speak with the 
board.

I have represented the Portfolio Holder at further meetings of Care Home 
providers in Bromley where representatives are invited to come along to 
discuss concerns and issues and ideas. 

I also attend the Care Services PDS meetings as an observer.

………………………………………….

Cllr Nicky Dykes 
Executive Assistant to the Children, Education & Families Portfolio 
Holder 

It’s been a busy nine months since taking on the Executive Assistant role to Cllr 
Peter Fortune, Portfolio Holder for Children, Education and Families.  A lot has 
been done but there is still more to do.  In summary here is an outline of the 
work undertaken so far and what I will be focussing on over the coming months. 

Activity Undertaken

1.  I have been keen to get to know the department well and have spent 
time meeting key teams on a one to one basis covering SEN provision, Early 
Years, strategy and education.   These are the areas that are of interest to me 
and where I felt I could make a difference. 

2. The department does great work and part of my role is to help shine a 
light on this and help the council programmes and initiatives reach more 

Page 32



21

Bromley families. A good example of this is the Mayor of London’s Healthy 
Early Years London programme. The initiative aims to encourage early years’ 
and childminders to focus on health and wellbeing to support the achievement 
and education of young children.  Bromley is outperforming the rest of London 
in both uptake and awards of bronze, silver and gold.  I was delighted to attend 
the award ceremony last year with the acting Chief Executive which was 
covered in the local paper - 
https://www.newsshopper.co.uk/news/17188722.healthy-early-years-
programme-gets-off-to-a-flying-start-in-bromley/.  We are now discussing how 
we push this further and get even more providers on board. 

3. I have been delighted to join the SEN Governance Board and am 
looking at how members can help promote the Local Offer. 

4. An initiative I have been very passionate about is involving families in 
policy development and improving communication.  I have therefore been very 
excited to join forces with Cllr Aisha Cuthbert in launching a new playgroup - 
Talk, Tots and Tumble.  It is held on a Saturday every other month in the free 
soft play area at The Glades. The purpose of hosting this on a weekend and in 
a child friendly environment is to make it more convenient for parents and 
carers to attend.
The sessions are advertised on social media, including on the Glades Twitter 
account and website as well as posters in Central Library and in our Children 
and Family Centres.  We were pleased that our first session was covered in the 
Bromley Times.  You can find out more on our Facebook page - 
https://www.facebook.com/talktotstumble/. 

They have been well attended with areas of interest being childcare funding 
and healthcare services.  We have created information packs to hand out at the 
sessions which have been popular, with residents very much appreciating the 
opportunity to discuss issues of importance to them and their families.

5. Attending the Children, Education and Families Select committee to 
support Cllr Fortune and the Budget Sub Committee. 
Areas of Focus Going Forward

Whilst much of the work outlined above will of course continue I have identified 
with the Portfolio Holder and officers the areas I would like to focus on next.

1. Working with Rachel Dunley we will be investigating how the services 
provided at our children centres can be promoted and communicated to reach 
even more of the families in the Borough.  Clearly setting out the journey from 
birth through to key parenting milestones and the support services available. 
This is likely to include social media as well. 

Page 33

https://www.newsshopper.co.uk/news/17188722.healthy-early-years-programme-gets-off-to-a-flying-start-in-bromley/
https://www.newsshopper.co.uk/news/17188722.healthy-early-years-programme-gets-off-to-a-flying-start-in-bromley/
https://www.facebook.com/talktotstumble/


22

2. School places – the school places planning group will be meeting soon, 
and I am currently in discussions about how this can evolve to incorporate a 
greater parent voice and community involvement. 

3. Early years sufficiency report – the Borough is required to provide 
secure and sufficient child care places and a report setting out how this is 
achieved.  I have recently met with the new early years manager to discuss this 
and shaping the content.  This will be worked on over the coming months. 

………………………………………….

Cllr Kira Gabbert
Executive Assistant to the Environment & Community Services Portfolio 
Holder  

Having been appointed by Cllr William Huntington-Thresher in May 2018, this is 
my first year in the position of an Executive Assistant. Environment portfolio 
covers a vast range of issues and I am grateful for the opportunity to learn 
about its’ various aspects.

The Portfolio Holder asked me to continually monitor Fix My Street (“FMS”) as it 
was felt that the communications aspect of this extremely useful tool could be 
improved. I am monitoring FMS threads for different Wards on a weekly basis, 
following up with the service leads when it is felt that an intervention might be 
required. I also receive fortnightly RAG reports to help me with this task. 

As part of the FMS initiative, I have recently attended a meeting with the Street 
Lighting Project Board, to discuss how we can work together with our service 
provider to ensure continuous improvements in handling of FMS inquiries. I 
have requested for the changes in frequency of FMS updates to be 
implemented in order to improve the communications aspect of FMS for our 
residents.

At the request of the Portfolio Holder, I have been liaising with Lorraine 
McQuillan, Town Centres & BID (Business Improvement District) Development 
Manager. Our aim is to closely engage with the BID managers to ensure the 
BIDs’ needs are being met in the context of an agreed framework. The next 
meeting with the BID Managers is scheduled to take place in the second half of 
February. At this meeting the new Environment contract can be outlined and 
there will also be an opportunity for the Managers to raise any other specific 
issues. Going forward we will look to have a meeting every 3 months with all 
the BID Managers and the relevant officers from the Council.

I am working with the Neighbourhood Management Team with a view to 
introduce a street care plan and eventually present this to the Environment 
PDS for their consideration and approval. 
As a separate initiative, I am continuing discussions with the officers aimed at 
reducing the use of pesticides in the Borough’s parks and green spaces 

Page 34



23

through collaboration with IdVerde and looking into possibilities to trial and 
employ eco-friendly weed-control methods such as hot-foam technology.

I very much enjoyed representing the Portfolio Holder and LBB at the opening 
of FC Elmstead new clubhouse at Chislehurst Recreation Ground, and at a 
recent launch of a crowdfunding campaign by Friends of Kings Meadow 
community group. These had been very positive experiences, as I was able to 
see what real difference community groups could make with the right support 
from the Council. 

I have attended meetings with the Portfolio Holder as and when required as 
well as the Environment PDS meetings.

………………………………………….

Cllr Hannah Gray, 
Executive Assistant to the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio 
Holder

I have been delighted to continue as Executive Assistant to Cllr Morgan since 
being invited to the post in 2017.

In my role, I have attended monthly meetings with Cllr Morgan and on 
occasions when requested the weekly meeting between himself, Colin Brand, 
and his team which covered a varied and wide range of issues that are dealt 
with within the Portfolio. 

My initial project has been to develop a strategy to ensure that Bromley has the 
best coverage possible for both Broadband and Mobile.  In order to progress 
this project I have met with Kevin Munnelly and other professionals and 
specialists in this sphere; researched the current situation and providers that 
would be able to offer a better service and will continue to negotiate with 
potential providers.  I have previously had meetings with Steve Barnes (deputy 
chair of Downe residents association and former Senior BT Executive in this 
field) who successfully increased the coverage in the Downe area and whose 
knowledge has been invaluable and will be very useful going forward. I have 
also met with local Tier 1 providers who are keen to be involved once we have 
the final completed information back that we have commissioned, which is 
unfortunately taking longer than anticipated.

I have attended Bromley Economic Partnership meetings and increased the 
awareness of the meeting by inviting additional influential businesses.  Cllr 
Morgan has identified the benefits that can be had from creating an open 
networking session in conjunction with the Bromley Economic Partnership 
meetings. Cllr Morgan is aware of my extensive networking experience with 
small and medium size business and has therefore tasked me with expanding 
his idea.  I have developed this in order for local businesses to strengthen their 

Page 35



24

relationship, communication, mutual support and provide an environment for off 
agenda discussions.

I will continue to work closely and promote LBB with small to medium size 
business in Bromley at the many networking events I attend throughout the 
Borough to ensure businesses are aware of, and participating in, the support 
Bromley Council facilitates.

I have deputised for Cllr Morgan at the Bromley BID meetings and liaised with 
the BID teams to offer assistance on projects and surveys.

I have also attended Night Tsar meetings representing Bromley during 
discussions at City Hall re London’s night time economy and the part Bromley 
plays.

………………………………………….

Cllr Gary Stevens,
Executive Assistant to the Resources, Commissioning & Contract 
Management Portfolio Holder
(Extract from the minutes of the Executive, Resources and Contracts PDS 
Committee meeting on 7th February 2019)

The Executive Assistant for Resources, Contracts and Commissioning, Cllr 
Gary Stevens, addressed the Committee providing an overview of what he had 
been doing since taking up the post in May 2018, and highlighting the following 
areas:

 Prior on embarking on the role of Executive Assistant, Cllr Stevens had 
looked at areas where he could best add value.

 Using existing professional knowledge, Cllr Stevens had been involved the 
IT Transformation project, working with the Head of ICT to deliver the 
revised IT Strategy.

 Attention had now turned to the wider organisational transformation project 
which had commenced.

In response to questions from Members, the Executive Assistant made the 
following points:

 Cllr Stevens was willing to lend his IT expertise to the wider organisational 
transformation project, although time pressure may be a limitation on 
involvement.

 On taking on the role there had been no established work programme or 
key performance indicators; instead there had been a lose framework 
setting out general areas of involvement.  A Member suggested that 
establishing a work programme and key performance indicators might be 
something that the Constitutional Improvement Working Group may wish to 
review in order to provide a more structured framework against which value 
for money for the Executive Assistant allowance could be measured.

Page 36



25

………………………………………….

Cllr Aisha Cuthbert,
Executive Assistant to the Executive Assistant to the Leader - Portfolio 
Holder

I was appointed Executive Assistant to the Leader, Cllr Colin Smith in May 
2018. This is my first year as an EA and I have enjoyed getting to know various 
different departments and working with Cllr Smith on tackling some of the 
challenges we’re facing as a borough.

In November, I had the opportunity to speak at the Executive, Resources and 
Contracts Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee about my role and 
some of things I have achieved so far. I highlighted some of the work I’ve been 
focusing on in relation to housing given that there are significant resource and 
financial pressures on temporary accommodation in the borough. I also 
highlighted a new project I started with Cllr Dykes to reach out to Bromley’s 
busy families about the various programmes and resources available for 
families and children. 

I’ve been working with the housing department to ascertain policies that can 
help reduce our temporary accommodation costs and other challenges that 
relate to the housing crisis. Some of the areas that I have looked at include:

 -  Working with the portfolio holder for housing and officers on potential 
projects and programmes that will address the financial pressures 
associated with homelessness. 

-  Looking at our relationship with housing associations and investigate 
potential regeneration sites that could increase the number of social 
homes in the borough, helping to reduce our reliance on TA. 

-  Research other housing policies that will help the “stretched middle” in 
Bromley – those that are earning too much money to qualify for social 
rent, but who struggle to afford market rent. 

-  Looking at keyworker accommodation and the types of professions we 
need to attract to the borough like social workers and healthcare 
professionals. 

As the EA to the Leader, it was important for me to look at other areas that I 
could support and it was clear that although Bromley offers some fantastic 
resources and programmes to families and children, reaching out and getting 
the message to parents and carers is challenging. Cllr Nicola Dykes and I 
started a new initiative which seeks to address the communication gap, called 
"Talk, Tots and Tumble". The programme brings information to Bromley’s 
young families at the soft play area in The Glades. Our aim is to bring a new 
policy topic to every event we host to showcase the fantastic services that LBB 
offers. At the time of writing, we have hosted two events, the first was on family 

Page 37



26

policies and the second held at the end of January was on health. We intend to 
hold a third in the spring on housing and related services. 

I have enjoyed my time so far as EA to the Leader and I look forward to 
continuing to work with, and, support Cllr Colin Smith. 

Page 38



27

Appendix D

Policy Development & Scrutiny
Annual Report 2018/19

For submission to Full Council on 8th April 2019 

Page 39



28

Contents 

Page

1. Foreword 3

2. Policy Development & Scrutiny Committee Chairmen 5

3 Policy Development and Scrutiny in Bromley 6

Reports from PDS Committees –

4. Executive, Resources and Contracts 8

5. Adult Care and Health 10

6 Education, Children & Families 12

7. Environment and Community Services 15

8. Public Protection and Enforcement 17

9. Renewal, Recreation and Housing 21

Page 40



29

1. Foreword 

1. On behalf of all my colleagues who are engaged in Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committees in the London Borough of Bromley, I have great pleasure in presenting our 
Annual Report for 2018/2019, which summarises the work that has been carried out by the 
Committees during the Council year. 

2. The continuing Government reductions in funding support for local councils and the 
ongoing cost pressures faced by Bromley Council leaves a long term funding gap. The 
2019/20 budget has been balanced, however for future years the gap as follows; £16M for 
2020/21 and £21M for 2021/22 and £32M for 2022/23 which means that total cumulative 
cash savings of around £68M over the next 4 years need to be found. The Council has a 
legal obligation to set a balanced budget, so effort is needed to generate income and find 
additional savings over this period. The Government will implement the devolution of 
business rates to individual boroughs from 2020/21 which will allow Bromley to retain a 
greater share of the business rates it collects (subject to equalisation). Although Bromley is 
currently part of a London Business rate pilot, the devolution to individual boroughs will offer 
Bromley an opportunity to be rewarded for growth as well as challenges with any downside 
risk. Over the next few years this will mean that the Growth Fund will be very important to 
drive additional business rate revenue.

3. Against this tough background 2018/19 has come in on budget subject to the use of some 
contingency. Over recent years the Council has set balanced budgets, without significantly 
impairing the delivery of frontline services. However, in light of the looming budget gap, the 
Council has increased Council Tax this year by a Bromley element of 3.99%, including the 
2% increase to fund social care. In addition the Labour London Mayor and GLA also 
increased its precept by 5.1%, making the net overall increase of 4.21% for Bromley 
residents.  Current assumptions indicate a 4.99% increase in Bromley’s Council Tax share in 
2019/20. Bromley Council continues to be debt free, meaning our residents’ Council Tax is 
spent on services and not on interest payments.

4. The Council continues to promote significant change, both in organisational terms and in 
its ability to continue to provide services expected by residents. The Council has over 1300 
statutory obligations to discharge, and the associated costs represent a significant proportion 
of the Council’s overall budget. These take priority over discretionary spending. The funding 
gap can’t be closed without taking some difficult decisions and halting some services all 
together. Due to its prudent financial management, Bromley Council is able to deal with 
these challenges but needs to ensure that early decisions are taken and adequate reserves 
are retained and where appropriate invested to maintain sustainable finances. 

5.  In addition to the financial challenges ahead and the need to become a different 
organisation with fewer resources, the Council should grasp opportunities for wider 
integration across public services including health and local government and look at 
cooperation with other Local Authorities to drive efficiencies. The Council will need to identify 
new investment opportunities to help protect key services whilst managing any associated 
risks.  This might need a new look with an Investment and Revenue Generation Sub-
Committee, to help grow revenue outside the usual call on tax payer funds. Scrutiny will 

Page 41



30

remain key to ensure that there is adequate control and stability. In the context of these 
challenges, the Council should review its current structures including the PDS function to 
ensure that scrutiny can drill down to an appropriate level when looking at opportunities for 
value for money. 

6. The PDS Committees will have an increasingly important role over the coming years to 
formulate acceptable solutions for the reduction in service provision, which has to come, 
whilst continuing to deliver quality services to the residents of Bromley. 

7. Finally, I would like to thank all Committee Chairmen, members, and the Council’s officers 
for their diligence and hard work during last year in finding practical solutions, which have 
ensured that Bromley Council could formulate a balanced budget and is able to continue to 
provide essential services next year, which are important to our residents. 

Cllr. Simon Fawthrop 

Chairman, Executive Resources and Contracts PDS Committee

Page 42



31

2.  Policy Development and Scrutiny 

Chairmen 2018/19
                                                   

Cllr Simon Fawthrop
Executive, Resources & Contracts

Cllr Mary Cooke 
Adult Care & Health Services

Cllr Nicholas Bennett JP
Education, Children & Families Select 

Committee

Cllr Will Harmer
Environment and Community Services

Cllr David Cartright 
Public Protection and Enforcement

Cllr Michael Rutherford  
Renewal, Recreation & Housing

Page 43



32

3. Policy Development and Scrutiny in Bromley
Introduction 

3.1  Six Policy Development and Scrutiny (PDS) Committees at Bromley discharge the 
overview and scrutiny functions conferred by sections 21 and 32 of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and successive legislation.  The Executive and Resources PDS Committee has 
an over-arching, co-ordinating role on behalf of the other five PDS Committees and is 
required by the Council’s Constitution to present Full Council with an Annual Report “on 
the Policy Development and Scrutiny functions and PDS budget, and amended working 
methods if appropriate” (Article 6, Section 6.03 (d) of the Constitution).  

3.2   The PDS Committees mirror the Council’s executive portfolios:

  Executive, Resources & Contracts
   (covering both the Resources, Contracts and Commissioning Portfolio and the 

Executive)
 Adult Care & Health Services
  Education, Children and Families Select Committee
  Environment & Community Services
  Public Protection and Enforcement
  Renewal, Recreation & Housing

3.3   In addition to these Committees there are two PDS Sub-Committees:

 Education, Children and Families Budget and Performance Monitoring Sub-
Committee

 Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee

3.4   Although they have no decision-making powers, PDS Committees and Sub-Committees 
have key roles in contributing to policy development and scrutinising the decisions of the 
Executive and individual Portfolio Holders.

Policy Reviews 

3.5  PDS Committees advise Portfolio Holders, the Executive and full Council on policies, 
budgets and service delivery. PDS Committees can commission groups of Councillors to 
review an issue or policy, so assisting a Portfolio Holder or the Executive to improve a 
service or function affecting local people.  This can be linked to a forthcoming decision by 
a Portfolio Holder or the Executive or to assist in formulating fresh, new policy. In each 
case detailed, evidence-based assessments are carried out and recommendations made 
in a report. In the process, Councillors can speak to a broad range of people to help gather 
information for their evidence-based reports. 

One-Off Reviews 

3.6   In addition to in-depth policy reviews, PDS Committees can also review a topical issue at 
Committee with comments and recommendations referred on to the Portfolio Holder. 
These reviews are often based around a presentation or an evidence-giving session with 
expert witnesses.

Page 44



33

        Performance and Budget Monitoring

3.7    PDS Committees monitor the performance of services, functions and contracts within their 
remit, assessing performance against key performance indicators and policy objectives. 
Concerns are reported to a Portfolio Holder who can then, if necessary, be called to a PDS 
Committee meeting to account for the performance of his or her Portfolio.

3.8    PDS Committees are also involved in the budget setting process and provide considered 
comments and recommendations for the Executive to take account of when formulating 
the Council’s annual budget. Similarly, PDS Committees also monitor in-year spend of 
budgets and raise concerns where there is any possibility of overspend or other issues 
affecting spending priorities.  

   Call-in 

3.9   The call-in process is a key means by which PDS Committees can hold the Executive to 
account. Any five Councillors can call in a decision and prevent it from taking 
immediate effect until it has been re-considered by a PDS Committee. The 
Committee can then interview the Portfolio Holder and officers and consider whether the 
decision is appropriate, within the Council’s policy framework, and whether it should 
be reconsidered. If the Committee feels that the decision should be reversed or altered, it 
can make a recommendation to the Executive, which then has to reconsider the matter.   

3.10  At the time of writing, one call-in has been made in 2018/19. The continued low level of 
call-in reflects an emphasis given to pre-decision scrutiny leading to better and more 
robust decisions which are less likely to be challenged. 

Page 45



34

4.  Report from Executive, Resources & 
Contracts PDS Committee 
Chairman: Cllr. Simon Fawthrop 

Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Keith Onslow 

1. Introduction

In 2018/19 the Committee held 8 scheduled meetings, and 1 additional meeting. The regular 
meetings included the scrutiny of items to be decided at the Executive’s meetings, in 
addition to matters reported to the Committee.  The Committee also has Contracts and 
Commissioning Sub-Committee, chaired by Cllr Wells with support from Cllr Neil Reddin as 
Vice-Chairman, which has undertaken some very useful work in coordinating the end to end 
contract scrutiny process and analysing gaps in the processes.  I would also like to thank the 
members of the Committee for their contributions and thank the Officer team, for their 
support across the year, including call overs and agenda setting as well as numerous ad hoc 
meetings.

2. Scrutiny of the Executive and the Resources, Contracts and Commissioning 
Portfolio Holder
The Committee’s principal role is to scrutinise the decisions of the Executive and to hold the 
Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive Officer and the Resources, Contracts and 
Commissioning Portfolio Holder to account. This Committee has discharged its 
responsibilities diligently and competently during the year. I would like to thank all the above 
for their valuable contributions. I would also like to thank the PDS Chairmen for their regular 
reports and contributions, as well as Committee members for bringing their insight and 
wisdom to the meetings.

3. Review of Council Activities
The Committee has been very conscious of the need to reduce costs and has diligently 
scrutinised budget and capital programme reports and measures to bring costs under 
control, including overspends across some budget headings. The contracts register and the 
disposal of various surplus assets, the performance of the Council Tax Support Scheme and 
issues concerning homelessness and temporary accommodation, Treasury Management 
performance which continues in the top 10% of local authority performances, the various 
invest-to-save projects, as well as details on the Growth Fund and Investment Fund 
initiatives and the risk register were also considered. In addition the Committee considered 
the disposal of assets including the Old Town Hall site. 

4. Scrutiny of Contracts.
The Committee also reviewed the work of key supplier contracts including the IT Services 
contract provided by BT (as I am an employee of BT these items were chaired by Cllr 
Onslow, to avoid any conflict of interest).  We also reviewed the work of Liberata and Amey.  
Whilst it has been good to see the Liberata contract performing well and showing both good 
value for money and a good level of service, Amey has been more challenging.  Bromley’s 
employees often bring poor performance and poor standards by Amey to me on a 

Page 46



35

confidential basis, whilst some things have changed, the fact that these complaints continue 
means further and deeper scrutiny is required. The retendering of the Exchequer Services 
Contract was being scrutinised by the Contracts and Commissioning Sub Committee under 
Cllr Wells.

5. Outlook
The Government’s cost reductions have continued to impact on the Council’s finances. The 
task to find the savings necessary to balance the Council’s budget has been a major factor 
across this year. 
Keeping on top of the cost pressures, which include additional growth items of up to £33m in 
2022/23, partly offset by mitigation of £15m, will be crucial in delivering a balanced budget in 
future years. The main challenge is closing the funding gap of £32 million by 2022/23, and a 
lot of hard work remains to ensure the Council continues to set legal budgets over the 
coming years. On a positive note a Brexit bounce for the economy is just around the corner.

6. Conclusions 

The Council is undergoing significant change, both in organisational terms and in its ability to 
continue to provide services expected by residents. The era of streamlining, re-organising 
and cost cutting, whilst continuing to provide services “as usual” is becoming harder and 
difficult decisions will now have to be taken about reducing certain service provision. 
Statutory obligations will have to take precedence over providing discretionary support. 

It remains essential that we take action to meet our statutory obligations, to have a balanced 
budget and ensure the Council provide key services whilst ‘living within its means’.    

The challenges for Bromley Council in the coming years are the need to make the wider 
public fully aware of the Council’s financial position of balancing on-going service pressures 
against a backdrop of less central tax payer support year on year and to ensure that 
planning is in place for dealing with the budget gap in future years.  This will include both 
cost reductions and revenue generation within the confines of the Building a Better Bromley, 
Clean and Green approach adopted by the Conservative administration.

Councillor Simon Fawthrop 
Chairman, Executive & Resources PDS Committee

Page 47



36

5.  Report from Adult Care and Health PDS 
Committee
Chairman Cllr Mary Cooke

Vice Chairman. Cllr Robert McIlveen

The Adult Care & Health PDS and the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee held a total of 9 
meetings this year. The Sub-Committee considered moving its start time from 4pm to later in 
the day but after consultation with partners agreed that this would not be a positive move. 

I begin by expressing thanks to all Committee Members, both elected and Co-Opted, officers 
and staff of LBB and the representatives of our health partners who have given unstintingly 
of their time and their expertise.  In particular I would like to pay tribute to Kerry Nicholls, the 
Clerk to the Committees, who left LBB at the beginning of February.  I wish her every 
success.

Review of 2018/2019

1. The Service is demand-led and the predicted overspend was mitigated by the release of 
funding from the Improved Better Care Fund, the Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group 
(BCCG) reserve and the work undertaken by the Invest to Save team.

2. During the year the Committee was pleased to note the “Good” outcome of the 
Reabblement inspection in May 2018, the “Good” outcome of NHS England’s annual review 
of Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group, and the expected positive outcome of the Shared 
Lives Service Inspection which took place in early 2019.

3. There has been more proactive management of contracts reflecting the Committee’s role 
in scrutinising the improvement process and Members agree that they have a much 
improved line of sight of procurement and contract management. The previous flow of urgent 
decisions has ceased and at its last meeting the Committee was pleased to note that only 
one contract is red flagged and that is due to the proximity of the end of the contract.

4. The Committee scrutinised reports from the Public Health service which it found helpful. It 
resolved new funding of £603k to continue the Health Support to Schools programme 
targeted at children with medical and safeguarding needs to continue when the Better Care 
Funding ceases in March 2019.

5. Key highlights of the year include:

 Successful partnership working with the Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board 
including the provision of safeguarding training for all Members of the 
Committee.

 The recruitment of 15 newly qualified social workers strengthened the Adult 
Social Care Service.

 The procurement of a new Social Care Case Management IT system.

Page 48



37

 Attention has been given to both Supported Living and Shared Lives 
Schemes and recommendations successfully introduced to meet winter 
pressure demands in 2017/18. These were enhanced for 2018/19 and a 
report from the BCCG is planned for the March meeting of the Health Scrutiny 
Sub Committee. made as to procurement process

 The comprehensive evaluation of winter health services carried out by BCCG.  
A range of services were successfully introduced to meet winter pressure 
demands in 2017/18. These were enhanced for 2018/19 and a report from the 
BCCG is planned for the March meeting of the Health Scrutiny Sub 
Committee. 

6. Sustained efforts have been undertaken to strengthen our relationship with our partners. 
The Chairman and the Portfolio Holder now have regular meetings with Bromley Healthcare 
and, health representatives meet the Health Sub-Committee bi-annually. We are also 
confident that relationships with Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust will improve following the 
appointment of Matthew Trainer (previously COO at the PRUH) as Chief Executive at 
Oxleas and the appointment of Cllr Yvonne Bear to the Oxleas Council of Governors.  King’s 
College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust has been subject to a number of severe challenges 
since it was placed in Financial Special Measures in December 2017, including the need to 
recruit a Chief Executive at the PRUH. However the inability to field a representative to 
attend the Sub Committee meeting in January or the meeting scheduled for the 6 March 
2019 is more than regrettable. 

Objectives for 2019/20

1. Continue to monitor the performance against budget with vigour paying particular attention 
to the Council’s statutory duties that fall under the Committee’s purview

2 Focus on mental health taking a holistic approach to encourage partners to work more 
closely to strive to ensure that physical, mental and social care needs of people are met. In 
particular scrutinise the process for transition from child to adult mental health services.

3 While appreciating the value of the present schedule of visits to Care Homes etc the 
Committee does not believe it is the appropriate forum for in depth scrutiny.  It will, therefore, 
invite the providers of high value contracts and users of the service to contribute to the work 
of the Committee either by attending the meeting or giving feedback in a more appropriate 
way. 

4. Scrutinise the contracts register and the contracts data base. Recognising that its role is 
to scrutinise the shaping of services and not to micro manage; it will scrutinise the in 
principle decision as to whether to provide a service and scrutinise the decision of the 
selection of a provider.

Councillor Mary Cooke

Chairman, Adult Care & Health PDS and Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee 

Page 49



38

6.  Report from Education, Children& Families 
Select Committee 
Chairman: Cllr. Nicholas Bennett JP

Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Neil Reddin

1. The Committee has now been in its present form as a Select Committee for three years 
and has bedded in well.  All the members serving on the Committee have expressed 
their view that the way the Committee undertakes scrutiny and produces subsequent 
policy proposals is more effective than in the old PDS format where the emphasis was 
largely on scrutiny of the Portfolio Holder and his proposed decisions. The Select 
Committee process recognises that policy flows from the Executive but that, by 
Committee having control of what it scrutinises, it is able to examine in detail specific 
areas and make proposals for improvements. The new system holds the Portfolio 
Holder to account at each meeting and also over the year calls the senior officers for 
examination of their work. In addition, the Sub-Committee and, when necessary the 
main committee scrutinises contract decisions which the Portfolio Holder is minded to 
make.

2. The expansion of the Sub-Committee’s role to include performance monitoring  has 
enabled the Committee to give a fuller examination of the budget, the capital 
programme, contracts and risk registers, the Portfolio Plan and the annual reports of the 
Virtual School, Private Fostering, Adoption, Local Authority Designated Officer, the 
Independent Reviewing Officer, the Annual ECHS Complaints Report and the Bromley 
Safeguarding Children Board. These annual reports are produced at great cost and 
effort and deserve proper consideration. The Sub-Committee also invited the whole 
membership of the main Committee for the report into St Olave’s School.

3. The Select Committee met five times in the year with an additional meeting to examine 
the sustainability of the Education Budget. This was one of two inquiries covering the 
entire budget under the Portfolio. The children’s social care budget accounts for 20% of 
the Council’s total controllable budget and therefore must play a considerable role in the 
way in which the total budget is managed and controlled. The Education budget is 
largely devolved to schools but some 2% is controlled by the Council. The Committee 
has made 22 proposals in total, across the two budgets, to improve the effectiveness, 
economy and efficiency of the way the budget is spent.

4. In addition to the two Reports referred to above the Committee conducted three other 
major inquiries into:

 Post 16 Non-university technical education and apprenticeship 
Opportunities in Bromley

 The impact of Benefit Changes on Children and Families
 Lifelong Learning

Page 50



39

5. Three mini inquiries were held on the Youth Offending Service and Adult Education. 
Given the importance of the role of the Council as Corporate Parents, the Committee 
also looked at how Council Members could play a greater role in the lives of the children 
which the Council looks after.

6. The Portfolio Holder appeared for scrutiny at all but one of the meetings and, in addition, 
the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Education Care and Health Services, the 
Interim Director of Children’s Care and the new Director of Education have all been 
before the Committee for scrutiny sessions.

7. The Committee was very pleased that the Living in Care Council arranged for the 
Committee to view their new video ‘Listen When I Speak’ and it raised important issues 
which we have considered in our examination of our role as Corporate Parents.

8. The Committee had one important presentation during the year when Gillian Palmer, the 
Interim Director of Education, presented a valuable research report on Education 
Outcomes in Bromley. The report was extremely helpful, particularly to new members 
of the Council, on the factors affecting progress at each of the key stages in the 
education of Children in the Borough.

9. The Committee will have new leadership in 2019-20 as I take on the role of Mayor and 
Cllr Reddin stands down as Chairman of the Sub-committee. We hope that the new 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman will build on the progress made by the Select 
Committee and its Sub-Committee. There are number areas for further improvement. 
We hope that all witnesses will, in future produce written evidence to be circulated with 
the agenda and secondly that the range of witnesses can be expanded outside the 
Council staff. We appreciate that it has been difficult to get schools to give evidence 
(and we are grateful to these who did respond to the inquiry on post 16 education). We 
were disappointed that the NHS, the largest employer in the Borough could not find 
anyone to attend the Post 16 education inquiry and that we have yet to get private 
sector witnesses to give evidence.

10. I would like to thank the former Director of Education, Care and Health Services, Ade 
Adetosoye OBE, Gillian Palmer, the former Interim Director of Education, Jared Nehra, 
our new Director of Education and Janet Bailey, Interim Director of Children’s Care, 
together with all their staff for their help and assistance with the work of the Committee 
during the year.

11. My thanks also to all the members of the Committee and Sub-committee both elected 
and co-opted for their thoughtful contributions and cross party cooperation. 

12. The behind the scenes work of preparing for the Committee includes an annual meeting  
with colleagues to discuss the year ahead and then, with my Deputy Chairman, an 
agenda planning meeting and a call over meeting with officers for each meeting in the 
annual cycle. I want particularly to pay tribute to Cllr Neil Reddin, the best Deputy I have 
ever worked with. Neil and I have worked closely together over six of my seven years as 
Chairman and I shall miss his calm, common sense approach both as Deputy Chairman 
and in his efficient chairing of the Sub-committee. Last but not least a huge thank you to 

Page 51



40

Philippa Gibbs, our Committee Clerk and administrator. Without her hard work in 
preparing the agendas, writing the minutes and drafting our Inquiry Reports the 
Committee would not operate in the efficient and effective way which it has done over 
the past years.

Cllr Nicholas Bennett MA JP
Chairman

Education, Children and Families Select Committee

Page 52



41

7.  Report from Environment and Community 
Services PDS Committee
Chairman: Cllr. William Harmer

Vice-Chairman: Cllr. David Jefferys

I would like to start by thanking all the people who worked to ensure the 
success of the Committee in 2018/19. In particular:

 Our committee members whose questioning and 
contributions have shaped and improved the proposals coming through 
the committee 

 The Director of Environment and Community Services, Nigel Davies 
and his team for their contributions both to the reports and to the 
meetings 

 Cllr Huntingdon-Thresher for his courteous and knowledgeable 
responses to committee questions and concerns as Portfolio Holder 
with his Executive Assistant Cllr. Kira Gabbert

 Mr. Keith Pringle, our committee clerk who ensured each meeting ran 
smoothly   

 The members of the public who in asking their own questions supported 
the committee in holding the Executive to account and demonstrated a 
clear passion for enhancing the neighbourhoods in which they live.

The services within this portfolio impact every resident in the Borough, from waste 
collection, parks and recycling to pot holes and road safety. Residents expectations from 
the service are changing and we’re seeing increased emphasis on continuing to improve 
the safety of our roads, switching to new and more efficient ways of contacting the 
council, such as through FixMyStreet and the Bromley.gov.uk website and increasing 
demands to enhance and improve our parks. The committee has responded to these 
changing expectations driving ambitious policies. 

As a Policy Development and Scrutiny function we serve two roles, firstly to scrutinise 
decisions relating to our area and secondly to develop and influence the direction of the 
Council’s policy in this portfolio area.

I’m hopeful that members who participated in the committee and members of the public 
who took the time to attend felt that they had contributed to achieving tangible outcomes 
in both those roles. I highlight on the next page three key items (but not exhaustive) that 
the committee has achieved over the course of the year.

Page 53



42

As we look forward, the committee will need to grapple with a number of challenges. 
This list is broad but includes continuing our excellent record on road safety, 
understanding the impact of electric and possibly autonomous forms of transport, 
dealing with the increasing number of cars in the Borough and working with our fantastic 
friends groups to improve our parks and neighbourhoods. All of this will be against a 
context of continuing and significant reduction to the funding which we will need to 
respond to in order to keep the Council on a stable financial footing.

Key PDS Achievements 18/19

Proactively holding our contractors to account: Recognising the role of the Local 
Authority as a Commissioning organisation, the PDS started the civic year 
agreeing stretch targets for the delivery of our key services. A standing item was 
placed at the start each meeting to review how our services were performing. 

Those contractors whose performance 
slipped below acceptable performance were 
brought to the committee to explain the 
reasons and their plan to fix. This proved to 
be an effective approach in driving the best 
performance out of our services 

Developing our future transport strategy: The PDS 
committee helped develop and agreed our future 
transport strategy through the production of our 
Local Implementation Plan (LIP) document. The 
LIP details the borough's approach to transport, 
including the council’s continued objective to 
improve road safety and reduce road danger, and 
includes its investment priorities for both the next 
three years as well as in the longer term to 2041 
at a more strategic level. This LIP set out an 
ambitious vision and aspirations to bring about 
improvements locally, not just in how we travel but 
in the impacts this travel can have.  The strategy 
proposes ambitious strategies to improve road 
safety, to improve the conditions for pedestrians 
and cyclists as well as looking to reduce congestion on our roads, which has 
benefits for everyone.

The public response was very positive and we’ve already made progress in its 
implementation through our successful multi-million pound Liveable 
Neighbourhoods bid in the Shortlands and Ravensbourne area and through the 
introduction of a number of schemes to encourage active forms of travel.

Securing new park, waste, recycling and street cleaning partners: One of the 
most significant decisions of the Council this year was to agree providers for our 
critical environment services for up to the next 16 years. The Committee played 
an important role with a significant amount of scrutiny of both who our new 
supplier is and the service we want to deliver.

1

2

3

Page 54



43

We successfully agreed suppliers across four parts of the service (waste 
collection, waste disposal, street cleansing and parks) ensuring that we continue 
to deliver a high quality and value for money service with minimal disruption as 
the existing contract comes to an end.

Cllr Will Harmer

Chairman, Environment and Community Services PDS Committee

Page 55



44

8.   Report from Public Protection and 
Enforcement PDS Committee

Chairman: Cllr David Cartwright QFSM 

Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Christopher Pierce

The Public Protection & Enforcement Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee (PP&E 
PDS) will have met six times during the 2018-19 Council year. (The final meeting of the year 
is scheduled for Thursday 28 March 2019). 

This year marked the addition of the “Enforcement” reference to the Public Protection and 
Safety Portfolio. A significant amount of early work needed to be undertaken to identify the 
limits and extent of the responsibilities of the new PP&E PDS to ensure the assimilation of 
Enforcement went smoothly and that any overlap with other portfolios was clearly identified. 
A small, cross-party “task and finish” group met early in the Council year and identified the 
following areas of Enforcement activity which would now fall under the PP&E PDS sphere of 
responsibility:

 Planning Enforcement
 Parking Enforcement
 Neighbourhood Management/Environment Enforcement
 Public Protection and Safety Enforcement

The task and finish group completed its work in time for the September meeting of the PP&E 
PDS and its recommendations were agreed. Formal reports were then scheduled to be 
taken at the remaining PP&E PDS meetings to enable full and proper scrutiny to take place.

Portfolio Priorities and PDS Reports

At the first PP&E PDS meeting held on 3 July 2018, the Public Protection & Enforcement 
Portfolio Holder, Cllr Kate Lymer, outlined her Draft Portfolio Plan priorities for 2018-19. 
These fall under the following headings:

 Safe: Tackling antisocial behaviour and criminal activity (such as doorstep crime), 
securing health and safety in the workplace and coordinating the Council’s response 
to the PREVENT programme.

 Quality Environment: Through tackling nuisance behaviour, by implementing fly-
tipping and littering controls, as well as taking intelligence-led environmental and 
planning enforcement.

 Children and Young People: Tackling the unlawful sale of age-related products, 
particularly alcohol, tobacco and knives, through test purchase operations.

 Housing: Assisting in the provision of safe and secure housing in the private rented 
sector.

 Involved: working closely with our partners and the community to develop and 
deliver our services.

Page 56



45

 Prosperous and Thriving: through responsible regulation and enforcement to 
ensure a fair and safe trading environment for residents, businesses and visitors. 

 Quality Public Services: Delivering quality Public Protection and Enforcement 
services with significantly less funding, maintaining a focus on budgetary control 
contract performance, monitoring and management, and commissioning 
opportunities.

 Support and Regulate Businesses: Monitor Food Safety, Health & Safety and 
Licensing through inspections, investigations and targeted operations. 

 The PP&E PDS agreed that the Portfolio Plan be adopted with these outcomes as the policy 
priorities for the year.

In line with agreed policy priorities, by the end of the year Members will have received 
detailed written and / or verbal reports on: 

 Planning enforcement
 Parking enforcement
 Public Protection and Safety enforcement
 Neighbourhood Management & Environment enforcement
 The Knife and Serious Violence Action Plan
 The Food Standards Agency Audit of Food Hygiene Service Delivery
 The Food Safety Service Plan 2018 to 2019
 The Trading Standards Service Plan
 Animal Welfare Licensing 
 The CCTV Procurement Strategy
 The review of the Mortuary Service Contract
 Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Service Update Reports
 The Mayor’s Office for Police and Crime (MOPAC) Updates
 The Asset Recovery Incentivisation Scheme (ARIS)
 Issues surrounding Travellers in the Borough.
 Blue Badge abuse.
 Fly tipping.

Police Scrutiny 

With regard to crime, the Mayor of London has identified, as his priorities for the capital, 
sexual violence, domestic abuse, child sexual exploitation, weapon-based crime and hate 
crime. The PP&E PDS accepted these priorities and added its own local priorities, burglary, 
violent crime and antisocial behaviour (ASB), which would include moped crime and drug 
dealing. These priorities were agreed by MOPAC. 

All PP&E PDS meetings included a comprehensive Police Update presented by the Bromley 
Borough Commander or one of his deputies. Members used the priorities identified above as 
the basis to scrutinise the work of the Police and to raise questions. 

It has been sad to note the increase in crime over the past 12 months, both in Bromley and 
indeed across London as a whole. The PP&E PDS was particularly concerned to note the 
rising trend in violent and weapon-based crime, burglary and gang related incidents. 

Page 57



46

However, with the exception of the northern part of the borough, local figures show that over 
the last 12 months across Bromley, possession of weapons offences has actually fallen by 
10% (against the London trend), and this is despite a big increase in local “Stop and Search” 
operations, which would normally mean these numbers would rise. Burglary and ASB 
however appear to be following the London trend and are increasing.

It would appear that the Police currently feel under-resourced, both financially and in terms 
of establishment. The PP&E PDS continues to register its concerns, particularly in the area 
of local neighbourhood policing, where Community Advisory Panels (CAP) across the 
borough feel that police visibility, locally, is a major worry, especially with the perceived rise 
in burglary and ASB. There is also concern that dedicated Ward officers (DWOs) are 
frequently not in position in their Wards to undertake their duties. Currently the Committee is 
pursuing this situation with the Police Borough Commander.  

Over the past year, a significant amount of discussion has taken place between Members 
and the Police in Bromley regarding the new “Tri-Borough” policing arrangement which has, 
over the last 12 months been rolled-out across London. This has seen the amalgamation of 
policing across the boroughs of Bromley, Croydon and Sutton. Considerable concern was 
originally raised at the detrimental effect this could have on policing within the perceived 
“quieter” boroughs i.e. Bromley and Sutton, when considering the higher rates of crime in 
Croydon. The PP&E PDS Committee lobbied the Deputy Mayor of London for Policing and 
Crime to keep Bromley’s dedicated borough response team. We welcomed the decision by 
the Deputy Mayor to reverse the original plan of having one merged response team across 
all three boroughs, and that each would retain their individual response teams along with 
their existing number of response officers. The PP&E PDS will continue to monitor closely 
this new arrangement over the coming year, to see how it beds in.

Food Safety

A visit by the Food Standards Agency (FSA) in April 2017 found that the existing system of 
food hygiene inspections was working well, but more trained inspection officers were needed 
to reduce the backlog of visits to food premises. To this end, a total of two full-time 
permanent and three full-time temporary food safety offices (up to 18 months) were recruited 
in 2017. Officers continue to work closely with the FSA in respect of the reducing backlog, 
but there is a country-wide shortage of trained and qualified Food Safety Inspecting Officers 
and the recruitment of these officers is proving difficult. The PP&E PDS continues to monitor 
this situation through regular reports.

Emergency Planning

A new full-time temporary Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Officer has recently 
been recruited and the PP&E PDS received his very comprehensive report at its January 
2019 meeting. This report clearly identified that, following the Grenfell Tower Fire and its 
aftermath, there is significant work to be carried out in the area of planning for major 
disasters, to ensure that Bromley Council stands fully and properly prepared.  

Page 58



47

Contact Compliance and Scrutiny

During the past year, the PP&E PDS closely scrutinised the finalising of the CCTV 
specification, and tendering process, prior to the award of the contract in February 2019.  In 
addition, the Committee also scrutinised the enforcement work of APCOA, the Council’s 
parking contractor, to ensure the agreed key performance indicators were being fully met 
and that the Council were achieving the requisite value for money.

Member Visits

During the year, Members were able to visit the refurbished CCTV control room at the Civic 
Centre as part of their considerations in respect of the contract renewal.  Members also have 
an open invitation to attend Community Impact Days and test purchasing exercises of age-
restricted goods as observers.

Safer Neighbourhood Board

Over the year, Members received feedback from the meetings of the Safer Neighbourhood 
Board (SNB), which scrutinises the Police and helps to identify and set the local Borough 
priorities with regard to crime. These then feed into and complement the Mayor of London’s 
crime priorities. Both the Portfolio Holder and the Vice Chairman of the PP&E PDS regularly 
attend the meetings of the SNB and the Chairman and PDS Members also attended the 
SNB annual Crime Summit held on 29 September 2018. 

Bromley Youth Council (BYC)

The BYC has two representatives on the PP&E PDS and their contribution has been most 
welcome. The Chair of the BYC, Cameron Ward, in particular, has played a full and active 
role in the scrutiny work of the PDS. He has raised many valuable issues which affect young 
people in our Borough and has been able to register the views and concerns of those he 
represents, especially in the area of youth crime, drugs and gangs. He continues to forge 
closer links with the Police in Bromley. 

It is interesting to note that last year’s Chair of the BYC, Katie Bacon, has gone on, this year, 
to form the London Youth Assembly, which now represents youth across all the London 
Boroughs. Her initiative has resulted in the formation of the LYA Council, which is supported 
by the Greater London Assembly and which meets in City Hall. The LYA Council comprises 
representatives of all of London’s local Borough Youth Councils and Katie is this year’s 
Chair. The Chairman of the PP&E PDS attended the most recent meeting of the LYA 
Council at City Hall and witnessed the enthusiastic and extremely able young 
representatives identify the main issues affecting youth in London and start to formulate 
strategies to address the problems facing young people across the capital city. This is an 
initiative which should be supported by all London Boroughs.

 I would like to thank all members of the PP&E PDS, for their contribution and support over 
the past year and I would also like to thank those Council Officers who have worked 
diligently and hard to ensure the PDS has been able to fulfil its role. 

Page 59



48

Finally I would like to thank the PP&E Portfolio Holder, Cllr. Lymer, for her support and 
guidance and also for her hard work and enthusiasm over a very busy year. 

Cllr David Cartwright QFSM
Public Protection & Enforcement PDS Chairman
March 2019

Page 60



49

9.  Report from Renewal, Recreation and 
Housing PDS Committee
Chairman: Cllr. Michael Rutherford
Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Suraj Sharma

The Committee met five times this municipal year. Each meeting has scrutinised the reports 
for decision by the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio Holder and considered policy 
development for key areas across the portfolio. Alongside the elected Members on the PDS 
Committee, we were also pleased to welcome a co-opted member from the Bromley Youth 
Council, Mr. Sheldon Thomas. Through this past year, the RR&H PDS Committee has 
scrutinised a range of proposals and performance metrics and added further scrutiny to the 
planning service.

The Committee have monitored performance against the Renewal, Recreation and Housing 
strategic outcomes for the municipal year. In its June 2018 meeting considered the housing 
part of the portfolio plan to be insufficiently detailed, and targets insufficiently ambitious and 
sent it back for revision. It was therefore pleased to support an updated plan and key 
performance indicators at the September 2018 meeting.

Topics the PDS Committee have focused on include:

Town Centres

Bromley: The RR&H PDS Committee remained supportive of improvements to the public 
realm in Bromley to encourage footfall and the vibrancy of our town centre. However it 
scrutinised proposals to ensure value for money. As part of this, it rejected a 
recommendation to build canopies at the current cost, which it was pleased the portfolio 
holder upheld. It also recommended that excess profit from new commercial units was used 
to support the maintenance and enhanced cleaning of the pedestrianised High Street, a 
recommendation that was also upheld. 

Beckenham: The Committee was grateful for the successful completion of the work of its 
sub-committee, the Beckenham Town Centre Working Group. Throughout the duration of 
the Beckenham High Street improvements, it has successfully engaged businesses and 
residents in the process. The works have been completed successfully.

Orpington: Scrutiny was given to an opportunity paper on how various sites in Orpington 
could increase housing stock and improve the town centre. The committee supported the 
proposals but expressed concern about the lack of pace. It also asked that a working party 
was set up for the Framework Plan, including representatives of Orpington 1st BID, 
Orpington College and traders. The recommendation was approved.

Penge: The committee remained supportive of the council’s improvements to Penge town 
centre, including to the High Street and shopfronts.

Housing

Affordable housing: The Committee scrutinised a number of schemes to increase the supply 
of affordable housing in the borough including More Homes Bromley and the use of Section 
106 funds through housing associations. It successfully requested that the Portfolio Holder 

Page 61



50

take responsibility for achieving more affordable housing by being a member of the Housing 
Transformation Board.

Temporary housing: The Committee also analysed performance and proposals for 
temporary accommodation and was concerned about the decrease in available housing with 
demand increasing. It requested further involvement in scrutinising such schemes and 
ensuring performance levels of all schemes were high.

Leisure and Culture

Leisure: The Committee is supportive of the council’s work to reduce the costs of services 
without impacting quality. It was therefore pleased with the value for money provided by the 
new leisure contract which saves council taxpayers’ money without affecting service quality. 

Libraries: The Committee is also supportive of improving services at the borough’s libraries. 
It was therefore pleased that the new Penge library was delivered under budget and is 
providing a popular service. It has also supported the proposed West Wickham Leisure 
Centre and Library, which will also deliver new homes. 

Planning

The performance of the planning service was assessed, with a particular focus on the 
performance of planning enforcement. The committee also scrutinised planning appeals, 
considering those appeals received and decided and the costs incurred by the council. As a 
result of ongoing concerns about planning enforcement, it called additional scrutiny at the 
committee and was pleased that surgeries had been set up to highlight problematic cases. 

Scrutiny was applied to the Building Control service and options for its future. It was 
supportive of plans to undertake a full review of the service in order to achieve an improved 
service. However it considered it too soon to agree a shared service approach and that 
commissioning should be considered as part of that review.

The Committee has been tenacious in ensuring that the council takes a proactive approach 
to private sector buildings with flammable cladding. It has successfully lobbied for officers to 
speak to ministers to clarify the legal position and take appropriate steps to make the 
surrounding area of one building more safe. 

Scrutiny of the Portfolio Holder

The Committee scrutinised the portfolio budget, requesting that officers and the portfolio 
holder explained areas where spending was increasing. Particular attention was given to 
ensure that where third parties run council services, the quality remains unchanged or better 
and that cost reduces throughout the contract.

The Committee also analysed the contract register twice throughout the year, challenging on 
specific contracts to ensure that contracts avoid being managed effectively and there is 
suitable foresight of where new contracts are required.

Presentations

The Committee is grateful to Crystal Palace Community Trust and Countryside for visiting 
and presenting to it.

Page 62



51

Proposals for the forthcoming year

The Committee considers the Transformation Programme to be a great opportunity to cut 
the costs of homelessness and temporary accommodation while providing our residents with 
better and more certain housing. It encourages the council to take more steps to increase 
the affordable housing stock. In particular it encourages further use of Section 106 payments 
to build affordable homes with housing associations, as outlined at its November 2018 
meeting.

Thanks

I would like to thank all the members of the Committee for their diligence and hard work 
throughout the year. A lot of work has been carried out, which has covered a very broad 
range of subjects. I would also like to thank the officers in the RR&H department and Mrs. 
Lisa Thornley for their tireless work at the committee meetings and the ongoing day to day 
running of the department.

Councillor Michael Rutherford
Chairman, Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee

Page 63



52

Appendix E

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2018/19 

Outside Body Representatives

Adult’s Safeguarding Board Cllr Colin Smith & Cllr Diane Smith 
Age UK London Cllr Mary Cooke
Beckenham Parochial Charities Mr A J Duncan, Mr G Scales & Mrs Kathryn 

Strachan, Cllr Russell Mellor, Mrs Peggy Duffin & 
Mr Robert Mitchell

Biggin Hill Airport Consultative Committee Council as freeholder:
Cllr Peter Morgan (Reserve: Cllr  Christopher 
Marlow) 
Biggin Hill Ward:
Cllr Melanie Stevens (reserve: Cllr Julian 
Benington) 
Darwin Ward:
Cllr Richard Scoates (reserve: Cllr Simon 
Fawthrop)

Bromley “Y” Project Cllrs Judi Ellis and Peter Fortune
Bromley Arts Council Cllrs Gareth Allatt, Mike Botting, Robert Mcilveen 

& Alexa Michael 
Bromley Duke of Edinburgh's Award Support 

Committee
Cllr Peter Fortune (1 vacancy) 

Bromley Economic Partnership Cllr Peter Morgan 
Bromley Mentoring Initiative Steering Group Cllr David Cartwright & Cllr Kate Lymer  
Bromley Town Twinning Association Cllrs Kathy Bance, Mary Cooke & Suraj Sharma
Bromley Youth Music Trust Board of Directors Cllr Robert Mcilveen
Children’s Safeguarding Board Cllr Colin Smith & Cllr Peter Fortune
Clarion Housing Group South London Regional 
Scrutiny Committee

Cllr Chris Pierce 

Community Links Bromley Cllr Peter Fortune & Cllr Nicky Dykes
Cray Valley Library and War Memorial Institute Cllrs Peter Fortune, Yvonne Bear & Harry 

Stranger (one vacancy)
Crystal Palace Community Development Trust Cllr Marina Ahmad
Diocese of Rochester Board of Education Cllr Robert Evans 
Early Years Development and Childcare 

Partnership
Cllr Peter Fortune

Hayes (Kent) Trust Mrs Alison Naish &Mrs C Truelove 
Keston Village Hall Trust Mr M Baker, Mrs Pam Broughton & Mrs Maureen 

Marshall
London Road Safety Council Cllr Will Harmer
London Councils 
Children and Young People lead member 

Cllr Peter Fortune

London Councils 
Crime and Public Protection lead member 

Cllr Kate Lymer

Page 64



53

London Councils 
Culture, Tourism & Sport lead member

Cllr Peter Morgan 

London Councils 
Economic Development/Regeneration lead 
member 

Cllr Peter Morgan 

London Councils 
Grants Committee 

Cllr Colin Smith (Reserves Cllrs Diane Smith, 
Peter Fortune, Kate Lymer & William Huntington-
Thresher) 

London Councils 
Greater London Employment Forum

Cllr Pauline Tunnicliffe (reserve: Cllr Michael 
Turner)

London Councils 
Health and Adult Services lead member 

Cllr Diane Smith

London Councils 
Housing lead member 

Cllr Peter Morgan  

London Councils 
Leaders’ Committee 

Cllr Colin Smith (Reserves: Cllrs Peter Fortune & 
Kate Lymer)

London Councils 
Transport and Environment Committee 

Cllr William Huntington-Thresher (Reserves: 
Cllrs Kira Gabbert, Will Harmer, David Jefferys & 
Kieran Terry)

London Youth Games Cllr Graham Arthur
Management Committee of Wood Lodge Living 

Skills Centre
Cllr Kira Gabbert

Mytime Active Board Cllrs Aisha Cuthbert & Robert Evans 
 

Nash College Cllr Stephen Wells
Newable Ltd (formerly GLE - Greater London 
Enterprise)

Cllr Peter Morgan 

Oxleas NHS Trust: Foundation Trust Council of 
Governors

Cllr Yvonne Bear

Petts Wood and Hawkwood Committee Cllr Kieran Terry (Deputy: Simon Fawthrop)
Phillips and Lubbock Foundations Cllr Julian Benington, Mr J C Bowers, Mrs B A 

Powell & Mrs J Woodhead 
Proactive Bromley Cllrs Peter Fortune & Michael Rutherford
Reserve Forces and Cadets Association for 

Greater London
Cllr Peter Fortune 

Safer Bromley Partnership Cllr Kate Lymer
Safer Neighbourhood Board Cllrs Kathy Bance, David Cartwright & Chris 

Pierce
Southern Regional Flood Defence Committee Cllr Alan Downing (LB Bexley) 
St Olave’s and St Saviour’s Grammar School 

Foundation
Cllrs Robert Evans & Stephen Wells 

Thames Regional Flood Defence Committee (LB Lewisham)

Thomas Stringer Charity, Cudham Cllrs Richard Scoates & Melanie Stevens  
University of Kent Cllr Peter Fortune 

Page 65



54

Appendix F
Council Meeting Numbers - 2017/18 and 2018/19

Meeting Name Number of Meetings 
in 2017/18

Number of meetings in 
2018/19

Council, Committees & Sub-Committees 

Council 10 8

General Purposes & Licensing 6 8

Appeals Sub-Committee 3 6

Audit Sub-Committee 3 3

Licensing Sub-Committee 10 7

Local Joint Consultative Committee 3 2

Pensions Investment Sub-Committee 5 6

Development Control Committee 6 7

Plans Sub-Committees (x4) 24 25

Appointment Panel 1 1

Standards Committee 2 1

PDS Committees and Sub-Committees 

Adult Care & Health PDS Committee 7 6

Education, Children & Families Select Committee 4 6

Environment & Community PDS Committee 6 6

Executive, Resources & Contracts PDS Committee 10 10

Public Protection & Enforcement PDS Committee 5 5

Renewal, Recreation & Housing PDS Committee 4 6

EC&F Budget & PM Sub-Committee 4 4

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee 3 5

Contracts Sub-Committee 5 6

OHSEL Joint Scrutiny Committee 3 2

Page 66



55

Executive meetings 

Executive 16 10

Portfolio Holder Meetings 1 1

Other Meetings 

Health & Wellbeing Board 4 5

SACRE 3 3

Bromley Economic Partnership 4 4

Safer Bromley Partnership 4 4

Foster Panel 12 0

Fostering & Adoption Panel 17 24

Chief Executive Remuneration Panel 0 1

Crystal Palace Park Executive Project Board 1 0

Honorary Aldermen WG 1 0

Executive Working Groups 

Constitution Improvement WG 1 1

Local Development Framework Advisory Panel 1 0

Children’s Services Governance WG 11 7

PDS Working Groups 

Beckenham Town Centre WG 5 5

School Places WG 1 1

TOTAL 206 194

Page 67



56

Appendix G

Councillor Attendance 2017/18

Present
(Figures in 

brackets are 
for attendance 

as a 
substitute)

Absent
(Figures in 

brackets are 
for apologies  

received)

Percentage 
meetings 
attended

(excludes as 
a visiting 
Member)

Present as 
Visiting 
Member

Total 
meetings 
attended

Cllr Vanessa Allen 32 (2) 4 (4) 89 3 35
Cllr Graham Arthur 26 (1) 1 (1) 96 13 39
Cllr Douglas Auld *** 16 11 59 1 16
Cllr Kathy Bance * 8 0 100 0 8
Cllr Julian Benington 18 1 (1) 95 3 21
Cllr Nicholas Bennett 50 (1) 8 (8) 85 13 63
Cllr Ruth Bennett 19 (1) 5 (4) 79 0 19
Cllr Eric Bosshard 18 2 (2) 90 1 19
Cllr Kim Botting 21 5 (5) 81 0 21
Cllr Katy Boughey 22 5 (4) 81 0 22
Cllr Kevin Brooks* 27 11 (6) 71 1 28
Cllr Lydia Buttinger 25 (1) 4 (4) 86 0 25
Cllr Stephen Carr 27 4 (3) 87 3 30
Cllr David Cartwright 16 6 (6) 73 0 16
Cllr Alan Collins 28 17 (4) 62 0 28
Cllr Mary Cooke 49 (1) 9 (9) 84 3 52
Cllr Peter Dean 14 8 (5) 64 1 15
Cllr Ian Dunn 44 (6) 5 (5) 90 6 50
Cllr Nicky Dykes** 27 11 (10) 71 0 27
Cllr Judi Ellis 34 5 (5) 85 0 34
Cllr Robert Evans 49 3 (3) 94 2 51
Cllr Simon Fawthrop 57 (6) 1 (1) 98 11 68
Cllr Peter Fookes 6 2 (2) 75 4 10
Cllr Peter Fortune 30 6 (6) 83 7 37
Cllr Hannah Gray 18 3 (2) 86 7 25
Cllr Ellie Harmer 22 (3) 7 (4) 76 2 24
Cllr Will Harmer** 13 9 (7) 59 1 14
Cllr S H-Thresher 27 (1) 2 (2) 93 0 27
Cllr W H-Thresher 37 4 (4) 90 12 49
Cllr David Jefferys 15 11 (11) 58 0 15
Cllr Charles Joel 23 5 (5) 82 0 23
Cllr David Livett 45 3 (2) 93 0 45
Cllr Kate Lymer 46 9 (9) 84 6 52
Cllr Russell Mellor 47 (4) 5 (4) 90 3 50
Cllr Alexa Michael 48 0 100 1 49
Cllr Peter Morgan 28 2 (2) 93 6 34
Cllr Terence Nathan*** 20 11 (9) 65 0 20
Cllr Keith Onslow 44 (9) 4 (4) 92 6 50

Page 68



57

Present
(Figures in 

brackets are 
for attendance 
as  substitute) 

Absent
(Figures in 

brackets are 
for apologies  

received)

Percentage 
meetings 
attended

Present as 
Visiting 
Member

Total 
meetings 
attended

Cllr Tony Owen 45 (2) 6 (6) 88 2 47
Cllr Angela Page 17 (1) 3 (3) 85 9 26
Cllr Ian F. Payne 23 (1) 13 (8) 64 2 25
Cllr Sarah Phillips 20 5 (5) 80 1 21
Cllr Tom Philpott 12 2 (2) 86 7 19
Cllr Chris Pierce 17 2 (2) 89 0 17
Cllr Neil Reddin 41 0 100 0 41
Cllr Catherine Rideout 12 (1) 4 (4) 75 1 13
Cllr Charles Rideout 24 4 (4) 86 1 25
Cllr Michael Rutherford 20 (1) 3 (3) 87 2 22
Cllr Richard Scoates 22 5 (4) 81 2 24
Cllr Colin Smith 33 (2) 1 (1) 97 12 45
Cllr Diane Smith 30 3 (3) 89 12 42
Cllr Melanie Stevens 19 2 (2) 90 2 21
Cllr Tim Stevens 13 (1) 3 (3) 81 3 16 
Cllr Teresa Te 25 (1) 2 (2) 93 1 26
Cllr Michael Tickner 21 3 (3) 88 2 23
Cllr Pauline Tunnicliffe 23 6 (4) 79 0 25
Cllr Michael Turner 35 4 (3) 90 1 36
Cllr Stephen Wells 44 (2) 9 (4) 83 4 48
Cllr Angela Wilkins 46 (9) 3 (3) 94 9 55
Cllr Richard Williams*** 4 25 (25) 13 0 4

* Mayor/Deputy Mayor for 2017/18
** Maternity/Paternity Leave
*** Unwell for part of the year

Page 69



58

Appendix H

Bromley Electorate Forecasting Methodology (Electoral Commission 
Boundary Review)  

The Local Government Boundary Commission seeks electorate forecasts for 2024 at 
polling district level.   A standard forecasting methodology is available for boroughs 
to apply, whereby the past share of electorate by polling district is used to distribute 
the forecasted borough level electorate.

The Commission invites councils to present an alternative methodology, provided it 
is supported by appropriate evidence. 

The standard methodology is based on ONS data and uses historic data trends to 
automate part of the electoral forecasting process. Bromley, along with other London 
boroughs has therefore elected to apply an alternative methodology, based on the 
Greater London Authority (GLA) population projections which are widely accepted to 
better forecast the population of London’s boroughs.  Furthermore the standard 
forecasting methodology does not take into account any planned development 
beyond what might be anticipated to be natural growth, and does not therefore 
acknowledge the geographical spread of developmental changes proposed through 
the recently adopted Local Plan (2019). 

Bromley Methodology

Baseline dwelling figures by polling district are established using a baseline year of 
2015, consistent with the Local Plan housing trajectory baseline and the GLA ward-
level population forecast used.

Development Data

Projected housing change for the years 2015-2024 based on the housing trajectory 
within Bromley’s Local Plan (2019) Appendix 10.1 is assigned to relevant polling 
districts. The housing trajectory sets out development consistent with meeting and 
exceeding the minimum housing target of 641 dwellings per year as set out in the 
London Plan (2016).    The Bromley Local Plan (2019) sets out various components 
of future housing supply which are distributed between polling districts as set out in A 
– D below.

A. Identified sites of 9 or more units are allocated to the polling districts within 
which they are located. Where a site is split across more than one polling 
district and, detailed masterplanning is not yet available,  an indicative share 
of the total housing yield is assigned to each polling district proportionate to 
the share of total site area occurring in that polling district.

B. Housing on sites of 9 or more units not currently identified but projected to 
come forward in the broad locations of Bromley and Orpington Town Centres 
are assigned to polling districts within which those town centres are located. 
As these sites are unidentified, the overall broad location housing figure for 
each town centre is divided up proportionately to the share of town centre 

Page 70



59

land area contained in each polling district. The polling district ‘land area’ 
having first been adjusted to avoid potential ‘double dipping’ with sites 
considered under A (above).

C. Housing of 9 or more units on retail sites and public land not currently 
identified but projected to come forward are assigned to polling districts where 
locations most likely to contain these sites. For the purposes of this exercise, 
this approximation is limited to land within the boundaries of town centres at 
District level or higher (as recognised in the Local Plan). This includes 
Bromley (Metropolitan level), Orpington (Major level), Beckenham, Penge, 
Petts Wood, West Wickham and Crystal Palace (all District level) Town 
Centres. Similarly ‘B’, above these sites are unidentified, and therefore, the 
overall broad location housing figure for each town centre is divided up 
proportionately to the share of town centre land area contained in each polling 
district (excluding the land area of ‘A’ sites).

D. Various sources of housing of less than 9 units, including completions 
between the baseline year and the Local Plan adoption date, commenced and 
projected small sites and the vacant units and prior approvals projections are 
generally distributed equally across wards and then assigned equally amongst 
polling districts within those wards, with adjustment to reflect the reduced 
capacity within  Green Belt (Darwin Ward) and greater growth capacity, in 
around Bromley Metropolitan Town Centre and Orpington Major Town Centre 
(Bromley Town and Orpington wards)

Forecasting the electorate by Polling District

The figures for existing dwellings and proposed changes in dwellings per polling 
districts are combined to produce a figure for the total dwellings per polling district for 
2024. 

An average number of adults per dwelling is calculated for each ward, using the total 
dwellings per polling district data and the GLA 2024 ward-level population 
projections for persons 18 years or older (Note : the GLA’s 2024 ward-level 
population projections are mid-year estimates and therefore include individuals 
(‘attainers’) who become 18 during 2024).  The GLA projections also reflect the 
housing trajectory information from Bromley’s Local Plan. 

The ward-level average ‘adults per dwelling’ calculation is applied to each polling 
district within that ward, forecasting the voting aged population by polling district for 
2024. 

Guided by the Local Government Boundary Commission for England, the conversion 
of voting aged population to electorate utilises the change ratio methodology set out 
in their ‘Polling District Forecasting Tool’.  The electorate by ward is compared to the 
GLA ward-level population projections for years 2016, 2017 and 2018 to produce 
ward specific ‘change ratios’ for each years 2016 – 2018.  An average change ratio 
across the three years is produce for each individual ward.

Page 71



60

The relevant ward specific average change ratio is applied to the forecast 2024 
voting aged population of each polling district to produce an electorate forecast for 
each polling district.

Page 72



 1

Report No.
FSD19047

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: General Purposes & Licensing Committee 
Council

Date: 16th May 2019
22nd May 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: LOCAL PENSION BOARD – APPOINTMENT OF BOARD 
MEMBERS

Contact Officer: Fahar Rehman, Pensions Manager
Tel: 020 8461 7024  E-mail: fahar.rehman@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Director of Finance 

Ward: Borough Wide 

1. Reason for report

1.1 This report seeks the required approval for the appointment of the new Member and Employer 
Representatives to the Local Pension Board, following the end of term of office of current 
members.  

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The General Purposes and Licensing Committee is requested to:

(i) formally appoint two member representatives to the Local Pension Board for a 
period of 4 years from 1st July 2019 (paragraph 3.8).

(ii) nominate two Employer Representative to be recommended to Council for 
appointment  (paragraph 3.8);

Recommend that Council

 (iii) formally appoint the Employer Representatives to the Local Pension Board. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6

mailto:fahar.rehman@bromley.gov.uk


 2

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy: The Council’s pension fund is a defined benefit scheme operated 
under the provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations, for the 
purpose of providing pension benefits for its employees.   

2. BBB Priority Excellent Council 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost: 

2. Ongoing costs: N/A

3. Budget head/performance centre:  Any costs associated with the reimbursement to Board 
Members of directly incurred expenses are chargeable to the Pension Fund

4. Total current budget for this head: £40.7m expenditure (pensions, lump sums, etc); £52.5m 
income (contributions, investment income, etc); £1,041m total fund market value at 31st March 
2019)

5. Source of funding: Contributions to Pension Fund
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional): The Local Pension Board comprises of two Employer 
Representatives and two Member Representatives. The Board is supported by the Pensions 
Manager.    

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:  n/a 
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement The Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013 (as amended) 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): 6,316 current employees; 
5,370 pensioners; 5,746 deferred pensioners as at 31st March 2019.

________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Council Wide

Page 74



 3

3. COMMENTARY

3.1 Under the Public Service Pension Act 2013, all public sector pension schemes are required to 
establish a Local Pension Board (LPB) to assist in the governance of the pension scheme and 
to provide a challenge and accountability to the administration and management of public sector 
pension schemes. 

3.2   The establishment of the Local Pension Board and its Terms of Reference for the London 
Borough of Bromley were formerly approved by Council on 23rd February 2015.

3.3 In accordance with Regulation 107 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
Regulations 2013, the Board must consist of an equal number of Employer and Scheme 
Member Representatives with a minimum number of four in total. In line with the Council’s 
approved composition and, as set out in the Terms of Reference, Bromley’s LPB is made up of 
two Employer and two Member representatives

3.4 The appointment of the initial two Member Representatives was approved by the General 
Purposes and Licensing Committee at its meeting of 27th May 2015. The General Purposes and 
Licensing Committee also recommended to Council Two Employer Representatives for 
appointment. This was approved by Council at their meeting of 29th June 2015. There have 
since been a number of changes to the membership of the Board, all approved by the GP&L 
Committee.

3.5 The original LPB Terms of Reference required that the term of office for all Board members was 
originally a period of three years. The Terms of reference were amended to extend the term of 
office to 4 years and this was formally approved by the General Purposes and Licensing 
Committee at their meeting of 20th March 2018.

3.6 On 24/01/2019 one of the current Member Representative; Geoffrey Wright, resigned from the 
Board. The term of office for the remaining three members expires on 30th June 2019. In line 
with the terms of reference, Expressions of Interest have been sought for 2 Employer 
Representatives and 2 Member Representatives for a term of office of 4 years from 1st July 
2019. 

3.7 Applications were invited from all staff, Trade Union Reps, Departmental Reps, other Employers 
in the Bromley Pension Fund and from Councillors.  

 3.8 Only four Expressions of Interest were received by the deadline of 28th April 2019, from Pinny 
Borg (currently employed by the LBB), Lesley Rickards (formerly employed by LBB) and Emma 
Downie (currently employed by LBB) who are existing LPB Members and one new Expression 
of Interest from Vinit Shukle (currently employed by LBB). No Expressions of Interest were 
received from other Employers in the Fund. The General Purposes and Licensing Committee is 
therefore requested to:

 (i)       Formally appoint Lesley Rickards and Vinit Shukle to act in the capacity of 
Member Representatives for a term of 4 years from 1st July 2019;

 (ii) nominate Emma Downie and Pinny Borg to act in the capacity of employer 
representatives; 

 (iii) recommend that Council formally appoint Pinny Borg and Emma Downie for a 
term of 4 years from 1st July 2019.

The expressions of interest forms are included on the agenda as a confidential appendix to this 
report (appendix 1).   

Page 75



 4

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Council’s Pension Fund is a defined benefit scheme operated under the provisions of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations for the purpose of providing pension 
benefits for its employees. 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Although permitted under Regulations, Local Pension Board members are not paid an 
allowance. As set out in the terms of reference, remuneration for Board members will be limited 
to a refund of actual expenses incurred in attending meetings and training. 

5.2 As the administering authority the Council is required to facilitate the operation of the Local 
Pension Board including providing suitable accommodation for Board meetings as well as 
administrative support, advice and guidance. This is currently done within existing in-house 
resources. 

5.3 Any costs arising from the establishment and operation of the Local Pension Board are treated 
as appropriate administration costs of the scheme and, as such, are chargeable to the Pension 
Fund. 

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 provides primary legislation for all public service 
schemes including the LGPS 2014.. 

6.2 The LGPS (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015 were laid before Parliament on 28th 
January 2015 and came into force on 1st April 2015.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

7.1   All Local Government Pension Scheme employers and members must have an equal 
opportunity to be nominated to become Board members through an open and transparent 
process.  

Non-Applicable Sections: Procurement 
Impact of vulnerable Adults and Children

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

Local Pension Board (Council 23rd February 2015)
Local Pension Board – Appointment of Board Members
(GP&L Committee 27th May 2015)
Local Pension Board – Appointment of Board Members 
(GP&L Committee 20th March 2018)
Public Service Pension Act 2013
LGPS Regulations 2013
LGPS (Amendment)(Governance) Regulations 2015

Page 76



 1

Report No.
CSD19070

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Date: Thursday 16 May 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: All

1. Reason for report

1.1    This report requests that the Committee, on behalf of the Council, considers the appointment of 
Council representatives to serve on outside bodies and partnerships. Most appointments are 
made annually, following the municipal year, and this year there are no three or four year terms 
falling due. 

____________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Committee is recommended to consider the nominations made by party groups in 
Appendix 1 and make appointments to outside bodies and partnerships, and in particular 
to decide which councillors to appoint where there are more nominations than places 
available (see paragraph 3.3).

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost: 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable: 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services

4. Total current budget for this head: £358,740

5. Source of funding: 2019/20 Revenue Budget
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   8 (6.79fte)

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   Not Applicable
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: None: 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  Call in does not apply to non-executive reports 
________________________________________________________________________________

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  Not Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Not Applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not Applicable

Page 78



 3

3. COMMENTARY

3.1   The Committee is asked to make various appointments to partnerships and outside bodies on 
behalf of the Council. Most appointments are annual and follow the Council year, but there also 
a small number of longer appointments that run for three or four years. In this case, none of the 
three or four year appointments is due to expire at present.

3.2   The schedule of appointments to be made, with nominations from party groups, is attached at 
Appendix A. In most cases the number of nominations fits the number of vacancies, but the 
exceptions to this are listed below.

3.3    The Committee needs to make decisions on the following appointments -   

London Councils Transport and Environment Committee (deputy): 
Four posts from Cllrs Allen, Rowlands, Harmer, Terry and Hitchins

Greater London Employment Forum: Cllr Brooks or Cllr Tunnicliffe

Greater London Employment Forum (deputy): Cllr Brooks or Cllr Wells

Bromley Economic Partnership: Cllr Allen or Cllr Morgan

Bromley Y Project:
Two from Cllrs Brooks, Ellis and Fortune

Mentoring Steering Group:
Cllr Jeal or Cllr Lymer 

London Road Safety Council:
Cllr Dunn or Cllr Terry

 3.4  There are no nominations for Age Concern Greater London and only three nominations for four 
roles on Bromley Arts Council. There are proposals to change the constitution of Bromley Arts 
Council which, if approved, will mean that the Council no longer makes nominations.  

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children/Policy/
Financial/Legal/Personnel/Procurement

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

2018 Outside Bodies report (GP&L, 29/5/18)

Page 79



This page is left intentionally blank



1

Appendix A

LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY

ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 

AND PARTNERSHIP BODIES 2019/20

(i) London Councils’ Appointments
Leaders’ Committee (S.101 Joint Committee)

(One Member and up to two deputies)

Cllr Colin Smith 

Cllr Peter Fortune (deputy)

Cllr Kate Lymer (deputy) 

Associated Joint Committee (London Councils Transport and Environment 
Committee)

(One Member and up to 4 deputies)

William Huntington-Thresher 

Cllr Vanessa Allen, Cllr Will Rowlands, Cllr Will Harmer, Cllr Kieran Terry & Cllr Colin 
Hitchins (4*)

Grants Committee (Associated Joint Committee)
 (One Member and up to 4 deputies - must be on the Executive)

Cllr Colin Smith 

Cllr Peter Fortune, Cllr Diane Smith, Cllr Kate Lymer & CllrWilliam Huntington-
Thresher 

Pensions CIV (Sectoral Joint Committee)

(One Member and up to 2 deputies)

Cllr Keith Onslow

Cllr Gareth Allatt & Cllr Simon Fawthrop  (deputies)

Greater London Employment Forum

(One Member and one deputy)

Cllr Kevin Brooks & Cllr Pauline Tunnicliffe (1*)

Cllr Kevin Brooks & Cllr Stephen Wells (deputy) (1*)

Page 81



2

Lead Members for London Councils 

Children & Young People/Safeguarding & Schools: Cllr Peter Fortune

Skills & Employment: Cllr Peter Morgan

Economic Development/Business: Cllr Peter Morgan

Crime and Public Protection: Cllr Kate Lymer

Arts/Culture, Tourism, Sport & Leisure: Cllr Peter Morgan

Health and Social Care including Adult Services : Cllr Diane Smith 

Housing & Regeneration: Cllr Peter Morgan

Planning/Infrastructure/Development: Cllr Alexa Michael

Finance & Corporate Services: Cllr Graham Arthur

 (ii) Partnership Appointments
Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group

Cllr Kate Lymer 

Safer Neighbourhood Board  (3)

Cllr Kathy Bance, Cllr David Cartwright & Cllr Chris Pierce 

Bromley Economic Partnership 

Cllr Vanessa Allen & Cllr Peter Morgan (1*)

(Cllr Vanessa Allen & Cllr Julian Benington  to receive papers.) 

Adult’s Safeguarding Board (2)

Cllr Colin Smith & Cllr Diane Smith 

Children’s Safeguarding Board (2)

Cllr Peter Fortune & Cllr Colin Smith 

 (iii) Adult Care & Health Appointments

Age Concern (Greater London)

(No nominations)

Page 82



3

(iv) Education, Children & Families Appointments
Management Committee of Wood Lodge Living Skills Centre

Cllr Kira Gabbert

Early Years Development & Child Care Partnership

Cllr Peter Fortune 

Bromley “Y” Project (2*)

Cllr Kevin Brooks, Cllr Judi Ellis & Cllr Peter Fortune 

Mentoring Steering Group

Cllr Simon Jeal & Cllr Kate Lymer (1*)

Cllr David Cartwright (deputy)

(v) Environment Appointments
London Road Safety Council

Cllr Ian Dunn & Cllr Kieran Terry (1*)

(vi) Renewal and Recreation Appointments
Bromley Arts Council (4)

Cllr Kim Botting, Cllr Robert Mcilveen & Cllr Alexa Michael (one vacancy)

The Crystal Palace Community Development Trust

(Crystal Palace Ward Councillor)

Cllr Marina Ahmad 

Greater London Enterprise

Cllr Peter Morgan

London Youth Games

Cllr Graham Arthur 

Proactive Bromley (2)

Cllr Peter Fortune & Cllr Michael Rutherford 

Page 83



4

  (vii) General Appointments
Biggin Hill Airport Consultative Committee

Representative of the Council as freeholder:

Cllr Peter Morgan (deputy Cllr Harry Stranger)

Representative of Biggin Hill Ward: 

Cllr Melanie Stevens (deputy Cllr Julian Benington)

Representative of Darwin Ward: 

Cllr Richard Scoates (deputy Cllr Simon Fawthrop)

Bromley Town Twinning Association (3)

Cllr Kathy Bance, Cllr Kim Botting & Cllr Mary Cooke 

Community Links Bromley (2)

Cllr Peter Fortune & Cllr Gareth Allatt

Leadership Committee of the Bromley Community Fund

Cllr Pauline Tunnicliffe

Clarion Housing Group South London Regional Scrutiny Committee
(Remainder of three year term to June 2021.)

Cllr Aisha Cuthbert 

Page 84



 1

Report No.
CSD19075

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: GENERAL PURPOSES AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Date: 16th May 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 AND MATTERS OUTSTANDING 

Contact Officer: Graham Walton, Democratic Services Manager
Tel: 0208 461 7743    E-mail:  graham.walton@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: N/A

1. Reason for report

1.1   This report summarises the Committee’s role and sets out the Committee’s proposed dates and 
work programme for the 2019/20 Council year. In accordance with the decision of Council on 8th 
April 2019, this report also covers matters outstanding from previous meetings, but on this 
occasion there is nothing to report.

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION

Members are requested to consider their work programme for 2019/20 and matters 
outstanding. 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status:: Existing Policy

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No Cost: 

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable: 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services

4. Total current budget for this head: £350,650 (2018/19)

5. Source of funding: 2019/20 revenue budget 
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   8 (6.79fte)

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:   Not applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: The Committee is responsible for non-executive 
functions as required by the Local Government Act 2000.

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  This report does not involve an executive decision.
________________________________________________________________________________

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  Not applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Not applicable 
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? No 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not applicable 

Page 86



 3

3. COMMENTARY

3.1   Bromley Council operates under a “Leader and Executive” constitutional model, with most 
decision making functions resting with the Executive. However, there are a number of functions 
which the Executive is prohibited from dealing with, for which Committees need to be appointed. 
In Bromley, the majority of these “non-executive” functions are the responsibility of Development 
Control Committee for town planning and related functions, and this Committee for most other 
non-executive functions, including licensing.   

3.2    General Purposes and Licensing Committee fulfils the role of Licensing Committee under the 
2003 Licensing Act, but also deals with a range of other non-executive functions that cannot be 
dealt with by the Executive or do not fall within the terms of reference of Development Control 
Committee. It therefore has a range of varied and sometimes unrelated responsibilities, 
including finance matters relating to audit and pensions, human resources, complaints, 
elections and Member appointments.  The Committee’s terms of reference, as set out in the 
Council’s Constitution, are set out in Appendix A.

3.3   Unlike a PDS Committee, the General Purposes and Licensing Committee has decision-making 
powers, many of which are delegated to a number of sub-committees -

 Appeals Sub-Committee

 Audit Sub-Committee

 Industrial Relations Sub-Committee

 Licensing Sub-Committee

 Local Joint Consultative Committee

 Pensions Investment Sub-Committee

 Rights of Way Sub-Committee  

        These sub-committees also have decision-making powers within their own terms of reference, 
and in most cases their minutes are received by this Committee for information. 

3.4    The Committee has six scheduled meetings in the year, plus a meeting after the Council’s 
annual meeting to appoint its Sub-Committees. The meetings for the 2019/20 Council year are 
set out in Appendix B, with the reports anticipated for each meeting. At present, the work 
programme mainly contains those regular reports that have to be considered every year. 

3.5   At present, there are no matters outstanding to report on. 

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on vulnerable adults and children/Policy/Financial/
Personnel/Legal/Procurement

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

None

Page 87



 4

Appendix A

2.01 General Purposes and Licensing Committee (Membership proportional – may include one Member 
of the Executive from each recognised party group, subject to Executive Members not being in a 
majority.)

(a) Electoral issues
(b) Making byelaws
(c) Administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(d) Staffing matters
(e) Probity Strategy
(f) Audit
(g) Open Government
(h) Fraud Prevention
(i) Complaint Procedures
(j) Member appointments
(k) Health and Safety
(l) Licensing of births, deaths and marriages
(m) Licensing matters, including, where appropriate, determining cases relating to individual 

licenses. 
(n) Non-executive highway functions as set out in Schedule 1 to the Functions Regulations 

(excluding functions under the Town & Country Planning Act 1990)
(o)      Any non-executive function not delegated elsewhere or reserved to Council.

Page 88



 5

Appendix B

General Purposes and Licensing Committee
Draft Work Programme 2019/20

16th May 2019
Appointments to Outside Bodies
Appointments to the Local Pension Board 
Electoral Review
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding  

25th July 2019
Audit of Financial Statements 2018/19 
Annual Leave Purchase Scheme
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding  

19th September 2019
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding  

6th November 2019 
Annual Complaints Report and Annual Ombudsman’s Letter
Programme of Meetings 2020/21
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding  

11th February 2020
Pay Award 2020 
Pay Policy Statement 2020/21
Members Allowances 2020/21
Executive Assistants Reports 2019/20
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding  

7th April 2020
Work Programme & Matters Outstanding  

Page 89



This page is left intentionally blank



1

AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 26 February 2019

Present:

Councillor Neil Reddin FCCA (Chairman)
Councillor William Huntington-Thresher (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Gareth Allatt, Ian Dunn, Robert Evans, 
Christopher Marlow and Tony Owen

Also Present:

Colin Brand, Deepali Choudhary, Barrie Cull, Janet R. 
Dawson, David Hogan and Linda Pilkington

26  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

No apologies had been received.

27  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.  

28  CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 
ON 14th NOVEMBER-- EXCLUDING THOSE CONTAINING 
EXEMPT INFORMATION

A Member referenced the section of the minutes that mentioned Direct 
Payments, and the possibility of the provision of a payment card that could be 
used to purchase services. The Member asked for an update concerning this. 
The Head of Internal Audit promised to look into the matter and provide an 
update in due course.

RESOLVED that

1) The Head of Internal Audit provide an update concerning whether or 
not payment cards had been introduced for service users in receipt of 
Direct Payments.

2) The minutes be agreed and signed as a correct record.

Post Meeting Note: 

The update relating to Resolution 1 was disseminated to the Member that 
asked the question on 20th March 2019:

Page 91

Agenda Item 9



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

2

‘Internal Audit have met with the Project Manager – Direct Payments Lead 
(PM-DPL) to establish the work done to date to improve the current direct 
payments process and secondly to evidence progress to implement a pre-
payment card for direct payments. 

The Direct Payment Board, Chaired by the Director of ASC, agreed the 
business plan for prepayment and the Gateway Report to proceed to procure 
has now been signed off by the appropriate authorising officers. It is proposed 
that a three year pre-paid card contract with an option to extend for a further 
year, will be awarded to start in May 2019’
 

29  QUESTIONS TO THE AUDIT SUB COMMITTEE FROM 
COUNCILLORS OR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

No questions had been received.

30  MATTERS ARISING REPORT---PART 1

CSD 19032

The matter relating to Zurich developing a cyber insurance policy was noted. 
The Head of Audit advised the Committee that a new Insurance Manager 
would be appointed soon and would commence duties in March. The view of 
the new Insurance Manager on cyber insurance cover was that existing 
policies were not well developed. The new Insurance Manager would advise 
Internal Audit further in due course, subsequent to his appointment.    

The Director of Regeneration (Mr Colin Brand) provided an update concerning 
progress made with the development of the Civic Centre Accommodation 
Strategy. Members were informed that the work to implement the strategy had 
gone out to tender. All of the tenders were due back during the second week 
of March. The contract would be awarded by the end of March and work 
would then commence in April.

A Member requested that more detail be added to the ‘estimated completion’ 
column in the Matters Arising report. 

A Member expressed dissatisfaction that the matter relating to the objections 
to the accounts had still not been closed and asked when this was likely to 
happen. Janet Dawson (Partner-Ernst and Young) came to the table to 
provide a response. She explained that this was a matter that was historically 
still being managed by KPMG. She hoped that KPMG would now move swiftly 
to complete this work and bring the matter to a conclusion.      

RESOLVED that the Matters Arising report is noted.

31  QUESTIONS ON THE AUDIT REPORTS PUBLISHED ON THE 
WEB

Page 92



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

3

No questions had been received concerning the Internal Audit reports that 
had been published on the Bromley Council website.

32  EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018-2019

Ms Dawson attended the Committee to answer any questions Members had 
regarding the External Audit Plan for 2018-2019.

Members were asked to note the External Auditor’s arrangements for the 
Audit Plan for 2018—2019. Members were also being asked to note and 
agree the materiality and reporting levels that were detailed in the Plan. 
Members were also being asked to note the significant risks outlined in the 
Plan, along with the Value for Money (VFM) arrangements that had been set 
out. It was noted that Ernst & Young LLP were also responsible for developing 
a similar plan for the Pension Fund which would follow.  

Ms Dawson referred the Committee to page 5 of Ernst & Young’s Audit 
Planning Report for the year ending 31st March 2019. She highlighted and 
explained the four main areas of risk that had been identified:

 Misstatements due to fraud or error—especially associated with the 
possibility of management overriding controls

 Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition, through the 
inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure

 Inherent risk associated with Asset Valuations

 ISA 19 valuations relating to pensions liabilities 

(ISA refers to the ‘International Standards on Auditing’ and are auditing 
guidelines from the Financial Reporting Council).

The Committee heard that risks associated with pensions were complex and 
so actuaries would need to be involved in the risk assessment process.

Ms Dawson explained that in addition to the risks mentioned above, two areas 
of audit focus had been identified.

 Spring Capital Loan

 New Accounting Standards—IFRS 9 & IFRS 15

Members were briefed concerning the Materiality limits which were as follows:

 Planning Materiality--£9.59m
 Performance Materiality--£7.19m
 Audit Differences set at--£479,500

Page 93



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

4

Ms Dawson highlighted the figures and asked if the Committee could confirm 
whether or not they agreed with them. The Committee was happy to agree 
with the proposed Materiality limits and the Audit Differences figure. The 
Committee was pleased to note that there had been a reduction in the 
external audit fees. A discussion took place about the issue of ‘Independence’ 
and how important it was that the External Auditors were independent from 
both Members and officers. 

Ms Dawson reported that there was still a Member who had not made an 
independence declaration. She asked if this could be followed up as a matter 
of urgency.

Post Meeting Note:

This matter was reported by the Committee Clerk to the Head of Democratic 
Services the following day. The Head of Democratic Services took immediate 
steps to clarify who the Member was, and to attempt to resolve the issue.   

Ms Dawson explained how Ernst & Young identified what they regarded as 
significant risks. A Member asked about the use of consultants. It was clarified 
that Ernst & Young used their own internal consultants and that Cushman and 
Wakefield acted as consultants for LBB. A discussion took place concerning 
the testing for capital and revenue expenditures.

The Chairman enquired why the Spring Capital Loan had been identified as 
an area of focus. Ms Dawson responded that the Spring Capital Loan had 
been highlighted previously by KPMG and it was now the case that Ernst & 
Young wanted to understand more about the transaction as it was an unusual 
one; for this reason it had been highlighted. 

A Member asked about VFM and enquired if Ernst &Young based their VFM 
assumptions solely on the consideration of the LBB accounts, or whether they 
would also consider the practices of other local authorities. Ms Dawson 
answered that Ernst & Young had teams that worked across a variety of local 
authorities and that because of this they would be able to identify good and 
bad practice. Reporting could be influenced if any of these factors were 
deemed to be significant. 

A Member asked how far would the external auditors ‘dig down’ into the 
accounts and financial statements of the Council. Ms Dawson stated that 
Ernst & Young would need to first gain an understanding of the Council’s 
Committee and Governance structure. They would need to make a judgement 
as to whether or not the system of controls was robust and reliable. They 
would also undertake an assessment of Internal Audit. Ernst & Young would 
only dig down further if they felt there was an issue or a risk.   

Mention was made of the LCIV (London Collective Investment Vehicle) and it 
was noted that the LCIV would also be subject to an external audit.

Page 94



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

5

RESOLVED that:

1) The External Auditor’s arrangements for the Audit Plan for 2018 to 
2019 are noted.

2) Members note and agree the Materiality and reporting levels as 
outlined in the report.              
    
33  ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2019/2020

FSD 19023

The Annual Internal Audit Plan was a risk based plan, the output from which 
would be used by the Council to inform the Annual Governance Statement. 
Members were being asked to approve the Plan. Members were also required 
to note and comment on the revised assurance options and definitions, along 
with the priority risk ratings and definitions.

The Plan was in draft stage and had been developed in consultation with the 
Corporate Leadership Team.

The Annual Internal Audit Plan proposed a tier of 4 new assurance levels:

 Substantial Assurance (Green)
 Reasonable Assurance (Yellow)
 Limited Assurance (Orange)
 No Assurance (Red)

Three new Risk Ratings were being proposed:

 Priority 1 (Red)
 Priority 2 (Orange)
 Priority 3 (Green)

The Committee noted the work schedule for Internal Audit as outlined in the 
Plan, and also noted how the work would be split between Directorates. The 
Plan had scheduled in 902 days work over 4 Directorates. This was two days 
more than the previous year.  

RESOLVED that:

1) The 2019/2020 Internal Audit Plan is approved.

2) The Committee note and agree the revised assurance options and 
definitions, along with the new priority risk ratings and definitions.

 

Page 95



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

6

34  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

FSD 19024

The Internal Audit Progress Report was written by the Head of Internal Audit 
and informed Members of recent audit activity that had taken place across the 
Council; it also provided an update on matters that had arisen from the 
previous meeting. Members were asked to note and comment on the report 
and also to approve the updated Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and 
associated documents.

The Head of Audit briefed Members that a ‘Risk Register Refresh’ had taken 
place between December 2018 and January 2019, but none of the risk 
registers required any major changes. A revised suite of risk registers would 
be presented to the Committee at the June meeting, along with the Annual 
Governance Statement. The External Auditors had identified Brexit as an 
additional risk.

A GDPR ‘health check’ took place in November 2018 and was scoped in 
conjunction with Zurich. The outcome of the health check was largely positive. 
Members heard that the planned audit of Business Continuity would be 
deferred as the two officers previously dealing with the service had left the 
Council. 

The Head of Audit was pleased with the findings of the audit that had been 
undertaken regarding the Housing Register, and so the assurance provided 
was ‘Substantial’.

The Chairman looked at the audit findings relating to the Management of 
Strategic Property, and the Director of Regeneration was present to answer 
questions on the audit. The Chairman was disappointed to note that the 
assurance level for the ‘Management of Strategic Property’ was ‘Limited’.  

It was clarified that with respect to the management of Strategic Property. The 
main contractor was Amey, and the sub-contractor was Cushman & 
Wakefield. There were various issues that were identified by Internal Audit. 
There were instances identified when invoices were paid to the sub-contractor 
where the appropriate supporting documentation did not seem to support 
payment in full.  

Another issue that had been identified in the audit was that work had been 
undertaken by the sub-contractor which was outside the scope of the original 
contract. It had not been able to be determined if the TFM agreed schedule of 
rates had been applied to this work and so it could not be determined if the 
Council had obtained value for money in these cases.

Additionally, the Head of Audit stated that the KPIs on the contract were not 
working because they were deemed not workable. It was also the case that 
there were no instances of default penalties being applied.

Page 96



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

7

When the contract commenced in October 2016, it had been agreed that the 
Strategic Property Sub-Contractor would develop a £1m Income Generation 
Plan. Internal Audit expressed limited confidence in the plan being developed 
on time and achieving the planned savings.

The Director of Regeneration commented that the report was fine and fair, 
and was accurate at a point in time. He said that in some areas (like disposing 
of the Old Town Hall), Cushman and Wakefield were very effective. However, 
there were other areas where he felt that they lacked understanding of what 
was required from the Council. 

The current plan to generate £1m of new income was being assessed by the 
Finance Department. Clarification was required to ensure that any money that 
had been classed as ‘new money’ or new income, did indeed meet the 
relevant criteria to be so classified. He said that the issues that had been 
identified around KPIs represented a learning curve; he was hopeful that 
those issues had now been addressed.  

The Chairman asked Mr Brand if the Council had lost money. Mr Brand 
responded that this was likely not to be the case. He pointed out that from the 
offset, Cushman & Wakefield were dealing with information relating to 
property assets that was in a mess, and which required data cleansing. The 
initial piece of work that had been required was to cleanse the property 
database. Working on the Income Generation Plan would follow the data 
cleansing. The Director was confident that additional income was being 
generated. The sub-contractors were treating the Property Portfolio with 
respect. 

The Director advised that LBB only became aware of issues/problems as both 
parties worked though the contract. From the offset there were issues with 
staffing, IT and inaccurate data. It was noted that financial incentives existed 
for the sub-contractor to achieve the ‘new income’ target, and that they were 
now being supported by Finance to do so.    

Mention was made of rental arrears relating to community groups and the 
various tensions and issues around this. Cushman & Wakefield had been 
asked to undertake a review of leases. A Member asked what the aggregate 
rental arrears were, and the Director responded that he would check and 
email the Member with the information.

The Vice Chairman enquired about agreements to reduce rent or forego rent 
increases for community groups. He asked if any records existed that 
recorded these discussions. The Director said that LBB supported local 
organisations and that Cushman & Wakefield were aware of the political 
environment. Many of the community groups were not commercial 
organisations and so would not be able to bear rent increases. 

The Vice Chairman referred to the matter of ‘unworkable KPIs’ and asked if 
LBB had now understood what had happened, so that the same thing did not 

Page 97



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

8

happen again. It had taken a year to re-negotiate the KPIs and this had to be 
avoided.

The Director responded that LBB was indeed looking at the lessons that had 
been learnt. He acknowledged that the contract should have run better and 
that outside advice should probably have been sought earlier. Change 
controls had now been implemented. 

It was noted that tensions had existed between Cushman & Wakefield and 
Liberata regarding unpaid rent, but the Director assured that things were 
better than before and were moving forward in a satisfactory manner. A 
Member said that there should have been proper variations of leases. The 
Chairman expressed the view that it was unfortunate that discussions and 
meetings had not been formerly minuted and documented. The Director 
assured that management actions had now been put in place to address the 
various issues. The management actions had been agreed by the Director. 

The Chairman asked what awareness did Members of PDS Committees have 
of these issues. The Director clarified that the issues had been reported into 
the Resources Portfolio. Finance was also aware. The Chairman asked if the 
ER&C PDS Committee was aware. The Director responded in the affirmative. 

A Member asked for assurances that leases were now being dealt with in the 
proper manner. The Director stated that he was now a lot more confident that 
this was the case. The Member asked if it was possible to recoup 
retrospective payments from tenants. The Director explained that if this 
course of action was pursued, then many community groups would be in 
danger of closing. He felt that what was now required was to put the 
community groups on the right footing going forward, and to manage them on 
a case by case basis.       

A Member expressed concern that unworkable KPIs had been agreed. He 
was also concerned that this had taken a year to deal with. He asked who this 
had been reported to and it was noted that the matter had been reported to 
the Contracts & Commissioning Sub Committee and to the Strategic Asset 
Management Group.

The Chairman thanked the Director of Regeneration for attending the meeting 
and for answering questions, and the Committee then turned their attention to 
the audit of Parking Income.  

The Head of Internal Audit briefed the Committee that two P1 
recommendations had been made subsequent to the audit of parking income. 
These were recommendations regarding contract variations and key 
performance indicators. Five additional P2 recommendations were made to 
improve controls. Resultantly, the audit opinion was ‘Limited.’      

A Member asked if KPIs were ‘right’, expressing the view that they were in 
fact ‘wrong’. He felt that an unhealthy focus on KPIs meant that the KPIs 

Page 98



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

9

themselves became the objective rather than service delivery. He felt that this 
should be considered, as KPIs often seemed to be the cause of problems in 
contracts.
The Head of Audit stated that KPIs should be meaningful, should be well 
thought out, and monitored at an early stage. There was a cost to monitoring 
that had to be considered. It may a useful exercise to consider what other 
organisations were doing.

The Head of Audit briefed Members on the audit of Health and Safety. 
Various recommendations were made, including a P1 recommendation to 
address the fact that a ‘Risk Assessment Universe’ did not exist. This meant 
that LBB would not be able to demonstrate that it had assessed its health and 
safety risks, and had formulated action plans to implement controls. The Vice 
Chairman expressed concern regarding possible reputational damage that 
LBB could suffer if the relevant controls and assessments were not in place.

Members were pleased to note that the audit of Debtors’ Income had resulted 
in a rating of ‘Substantial’ assurance. 

Members were briefed concerning the audit of St Olave’s School. Although 
the audit rating was ‘Limited’, it was still felt that good progress was being 
made as the school had fully implemented 8/14 of the previous 
recommendations, and another 4 recommendations had been partially 
implemented. The new audit had revealed a weakness in the expenditure 
process, which had resulted in two new P2 recommendations.

The Committee was appraised regarding the audit of Information Governance 
and GDPR. The audit opinion for Governance, Policies and Procedures was 
‘Substantial’. The audit opinion relating to training and awareness 
arrangements was ‘Limited’.    

Members were briefed concerning the P1 follow up audit relating to the review 
of agency staff. In January 2019, it had been identified that 195 agency staff 
had been engaged for longer than 6 months, while 18 staff had been engaged 
for longer than 3 years. Internal Audit had asked HR to provide the business 
cases made by the Directorates to continue the engagements. The 
information was in the process of being collated.

It was noted that in many cases the continued engagement of staff in 
Children’s and Adult Social Care was required due to a shortage of qualified 
staff. Mr Barrie Cull (Internal Audit) briefed the Committee on this matter and 
said that HR should be chasing the business cases, rather than leaving it for 
internal audit to do so. He said that more extensive testing would be 
undertaken and the Committee would be notified of the results.   

The Committee noted that the use of agency staff in Children’s Social Care 
provided flexibility, and avoided issues associated with pensions and TUPE. A 
Member enquired if HR had ever refused a business case of this nature. Mr 
Cull responded that he was not aware of a refusal, but it was the case that the 
business cases presented were normally strong. It was agreed that the 

Page 99



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

10

Committee be kept informed of developments, and that an update on the 
matter should be brought to the next meeting of the committee on 4th June.

Members discussed the audit of the Reablement Team and the Reablement 
Assessment Team. Members were informed that the P1 recommendation 
relating to Reablement Performance Data had now been implemented. The 
P1 recommendation relating to the Outcome Measurement Tool was also now 
considered as closed as the OMT was no longer being used.    

The audit of direct payments showed that all of the P1 recommendations had 
now been implemented. The audit of Creditors showed that matters were 
being progressed, but there were still issues that required addressing. The 
matter was now being overseen by Mazars.     

Members were updated regarding the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy, and Money Laundering Protocol. The Policy and Protocol were 
reviewed in November 2018, and minor changes were made. Local authorities 
were not directly covered by the requirements of the Money Laundering 
Regulations 2017, but it was generally considered good practice to comply 
with the spirit of the legislation. This would include the ability to demonstrate 
that appropriate safeguards and reporting arrangements had been put in 
place.    

The Committee heard that the risk of the Council contravening the Money 
Laundering Regulations was low, but it was vital that employees were familiar 
with their responsibilities, as it was possible to incur serious criminal charges 
for a breach of the legislation. The Head of Internal Audit had been appointed 
as the Money Laundering Reporting Officer.

As a result of changes made to the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy, the amount of money that the Council would accept in cash had been 
reduced from £10k to £5k. The Committee agreed that Internal Audit should 
raise awareness of the changes with Managers and Staff. A Member 
suggested that computer based training be adopted for these areas, as this 
could then be recorded.      

RESOLVED that

1) The report is noted

2) The Committee notes the Internal Audit reports that had been 
published on the Council’s website

3) The updated Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy is noted and approved, 
along with the associated documents  

4) Internal Audit raises awareness of the changes to the Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy with managers and staff

Page 100



Audit Sub-Committee
26 February 2019

11

5) The Committee be kept informed of developments around the 
submission of business cases from HR for the retention of agency staff 
beyond usual timescales, and that an update on the matter be brought to 
the next meeting of the Committee on 4th June. 

6) The Director of Regeneration would respond to the query from a 
Member regarding aggregate rental arrears.                
          
35  DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the date of the next meeting was June 4th 2019

36  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND THE FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business listed below as it was likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if 

members of the press and public were present, there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information.

37  INTERNAL AUDIT FRAUD, INVESTIGATION AND EXEMPT 
ITEMS REPORT

The Head of Internal Audit updated the Committee regarding the Internal 
Fraud and Investigation Report. 

This was a Part 2 (exempt information item) report, and so the minutes have 
been drafted as Part 2 (private) minutes.   

Members noted the report and commented upon matters that had arisen from 
previous meetings.  

38  MATTERS ARISING--PART 2

The Part 2 Matters Arising report was noted.

39  EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14th 
NOVEMBER 2018

The exempt minutes of the meeting that had been held on 14th November 
2018 were agreed and signed as a correct record. 

The meeting ended at 9.13 pm

Chairman

Page 101



This page is left intentionally blank



1

PENSIONS INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 5 March 2019

Present

Councillor Keith Onslow (Chairman)
Councillor Russell Mellor (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Gareth Allatt, Simon Fawthrop, Simon Jeal and 
David Jefferys

Also Present

John Arthur, M J Hudson Allenbridge Investment Advisers
Joanne Job, M J Hudson Allenbridge Investment Advisers 
 

78  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies for non-attendance were received from Cllr Gary Stevens. 
Apologies were also received from Cllr David Jefferys for late arrival.

79  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllr Russell Mellor and Cllr Simon Fawthrop each declared an interest as 
deferred members of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

80  MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 7TH NOVEMBER 2018 
AND 14TH JANUARY 2019 (SPECIAL MEETING)

The minutes for both meetings were agreed subject to the final sentence of 
Minute 67 (7th November 2018 meeting) being amended to read:

“Mr Arthur indicated that he would not naturally put forward a passive 
investment in Fixed Interest.”

81  QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE 
MEETING

There were no questions.

82  CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE

The Chairman had no update on matters under Part 1 of the agenda.

Page 103

Agenda Item 10



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

2

83  PENSION FUND PERFORMANCE Q3 2018/19

Report FSD19034 

Details were provided of the Fund’s investment performance for the third quarter 
2018/19. Additional detail was provided in an appended report from the Fund’s 
external advisers, MJ Hudson Allenbridge. 

The market value of the Fund ended the December quarter at £963.7m 
(£1,045.5m at 30th September). Market conditions led to a significant 
negative performance for the Fund in Quarter 3 (echoed around the country) 
with year to date return at 7.94% against a 5.94% benchmark. Details of fund 
manager performance against benchmarks for the quarter, year to date, 1, 3 
and 5 years, and since inception were appended to Report FSD19034. 
Medium and long-term returns remain particularly strong with the Fund 
ranking third against the 61 funds in the PIRC LGPS universe for the year to 
31st March 2018 (first over three years, second over five years, first over ten 
years and second over 20 and 30 years). 

To implement the revised asset allocation strategy agreed on 5th April 2017 all 
Diversified Growth Funds and Global Equity assets held by Blackrock would be 
sold. At 31st January 2019, the Blackrock Global Equity Fund balance amounted 
to £10,953,304 and in line with the Sub-Committee’s resolution on 14 December 
2017 (“the balance of the Blackrock sale, less £3m required to meet the cash-
flow shortfall that had occurred during 2017/18, be invested in the Fixed Income 
Portfolio”), Members were asked to confirm that the balance of the Blackrock 
fund be invested in the Baillie Gifford Fixed Income portfolio. 

Recommendation 2.1(b) of Report FSD19034 sought agreement to invest the 
balance of the Blackrock Global Equity Fund in Baillie Gifford’s Fixed Income 
Portfolio. However, it was suggested instead that the balance (£10,953,304) 
be transferred to the investment type suggested by Mr Arthur, providing a test 
case for the investment. Options could be looked at to invest the sum and Mr 
Arthur would meet Fidelity on 7th March. The Chairman suggested keeping 
the sum in Blackrock equities to retain options and for a final decision on the 
balance to be delegated to himself and Director in consultation with Mr Arthur. 
Options for alternative fixed interest investments can come back to the Sub-
Committee from Mr Arthur’s discussions with Fidelity. As such, Members 
agreed not to press ahead in selling the Blackrock global equities balance but 
to await the outcome of the review by MJ Hudson Allenbridge into alternative 
fixed interest options (for the Sub-Committee’s May meeting). Should 
something urgent come forward In the meantime it was agreed to delegate 
any decisions to the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and Director (in consultation 
with Mr Arthur).  

Following WM Company (State Street) ceasing (from 2016) to provide 
performance measurement services to clients for whom they are not custodian, 
the Council’s main custodian, BNY Mellon, has provided performance 
measurement information with Pensions & Investment Research Consultants 
Ltd (PIRC) providing LA universe comparator data. The performance 

Page 104



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

3

measurement contract with BNY Mellon expires in June 2019 and with no 
company offering performance measurement, or performance measurement and 
accounting without custody, approval was sought to agree an award of contract 
to BNY Mellon for a further three years at an estimated value of £30k per annum 
via an exemption to competitive tendering and subject to annual review. 

Information on general financial and membership trends of the Pension Fund was 
also appended to Report FSD19034 including final outturn details for the 2017/18 
Pension Fund Revenue Account, the third quarter position 2018/19, and fund 
membership numbers. A cash surplus for the Fund of around £3m is expected for 
the year. Following the merger of Bromley College and Greenwich Community 
College in 2016 and transfer of assets/liabilities to the Local Pensions 
Partnership, a final balancing transfer payment of £529k was made on 7th 
December 2018. 

Summarised information on early retirements was also appended to Report 
FSD19034 and additionally approval was sought on Fund Manager attendance at 
future Sub-Committee meetings.  

In discussion, Mr Arthur commented on investment performance for the Fund 
last quarter and outlined reasons for market volatility in the quarter which saw 
a major fall in markets. The Fund under-performed by more than 2% against 
the benchmark in the quarter, with Government Bonds the only positive area. 
The U.S. Federal Reserve raised interest rates with economic news of the 
slowdown. Equity markets bottomed out around 28th December, following 
more cautious messages from the Fed. Risk assets have shown some 
recovery. Although Mr Arthur expected further volatility going forward, and for 
it to be potentially more severe, it remained necessary to take investment risk 
even though returns will be low. Mr Arthur suggested diversified assets to 
counter volatility.   

Mr Arthur highlighted three issues to account for the Fund’s underperformance 
last quarter. As covered in the MJ Hudson Allenbridge quarterly report these 
comprised:

 the Fund entering the quarter overweight in equities against its 
Strategic Benchmark with a 65% exposure against the benchmark at 
60% and correspondingly underweight in Bonds, Multi Asset Income, 
and Property;

 the multi asset income portfolios having an absolute benchmark related 
to short term interest rates generating a positive return for each quarter 
even if markets fall; and 

 Baillie Gifford, managing most of the Fund’s global equities, 
underperforming in the quarter.

Asset allocation changes over the last nine months, including a 60% strategic 
benchmark for equities, had mitigated the effect. The former allocation to 
equities was reduced by firstly funding the departure of Bromley College 
purely with equities and then by allocating 20% of the Fund to Multi Asset 

Page 105



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

4

income and 5% to UK property, both of which performed better than equities 
in the final quarter of the year and since inception last year. As the moves are 
reflected in the Strategic Benchmark, their benefit is not captured in the 
Fund’s relative performance against its benchmark. However, they have had a 
beneficial impact on the total value of the Fund and therefore the funding level 
when the next actuarial revaluation starts in March. The Chairman felt the 
approach is on the right track and the changes had mitigated the downturn. 
Parameters were also thought necessary which can be reviewed every two 
years or so on the basis that should the number of asset classes increase 
there is a deviation from the fixed strategic benchmark. However, it is best to 
see how the latest asset allocation changes proceed rather than have more 
formal changes. Suggesting the Fund would not want to be too overweight in 
equities, a Member questioned how much risk it is necessary to take and 
where funds should be placed, if not in equities. Mr Arthur indicated that while 
we do not want to be too overweight in equities, the fund has been balanced 
by the reductions. Mr Arthur suggested MAI and bonds and to transfer low 
and high risk into medium risk. The Director suggested a red flag in 
monitoring reports to highlight any investment class moving to an underweight 
or overweight position. A Member welcomed this for the Sub-Committee’s 
next meeting and would like to see any risk parameters that might be 
proposed. With more volatility, the Chairman thought it necessary to look at 
this area more regularly. An actuarial review will commence in March and the 
Asset Allocation Strategy could be reviewed once the outcome is known.   

A Member urged caution about any future sale of the Fund’s investments in 
equities. Long term equities are reliable and their benefit would be lost if 
underweight in the class. The position can be reviewed and monitored. 
Corporate Bonds and gold were suggested. Gold would not yield a dividend, 
but could be used as an asset. There should be no rush to sell (equities) and 
invest in Fixed Income – the outcome of the Actuarial Valuation should be 
awaited. Supporting this view, the Chairman highlighted that transitional costs 
would also be incurred with any change and he assured Members that no 
change would take place until after a review of the asset allocation strategy. 

Predicting a volatile couple of years ahead, another Member referred to being 
at the end of a long economic cycle, reinforcing a need for active 
management. With a period of uncertainty it is necessary to be smarter. 
Currency could also unravel and reduce the Fund’s value and it might be 
necessary to have more diversification. The Chairman indicated that he would 
be more worried if the Fund had not achieved the level of growth it had. The 
Chairman supported looking wider and encouraged MJ Hudson Allenbridge to 
provide any further thoughts. 

On Fidelity’s Fixed Income, Mr Arthur would discuss how to improve the low 
yield. Should interest rates rise, bonds are likely to fall in performance and Mr 
Arthur suggested corporate credit assets (multi-asset credit) as an example of 
a better way to generate returns. Mr Arthur will talk to Fidelity and bring further 
detail/proposals to the Sub-Committee’s May meeting. 

Page 106



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

5

Mr Arthur brought forward a proposal from Schroders. Mr Arthur advised that 
the Schroders Multi-Asset Income (MAI) Portfolio is currently U.S. Dollar 
funded and it is then hedged back to Sterling (Sterling – Dollar – Sterling). 
When sterling and dollar interest rates are similar this did not matter. But now 
it is not cost efficient, Schroders had offered a new sterling based fund which 
would be more efficient and provide a marginally better return. It would take a 
couple of months to establish and Mr Arthur felt it would be sensible for the 
Fund to take advantage of the offer. The Bromley Fund would be the only 
holder of the units (probably making selling more complex). The Chairman 
favoured the product and Members supported the proposal. Another Member 
highlighted a real estate opportunity related to the lease of an Npower site in 
Solihull which expired in December 2018. The site comprises 75,000 sq.ft and 
Mr Arthur would investigate.      
  
RESOLVED that: 

(1)  the contents of Report FSD19034 be noted; 

(2)  sale of the Blackrock Global Equity Fund be deferred whilst awaiting 
the outcome of a review, by the Sub-Committee’s financial adviser, of 
alternative income products;

(3)  the further award of the Pension performance measurement contract 
via an exemption to competitive tendering (as set out at paragraph 3.3.3 
of Report FSD19034) be agreed; 

(4)  the programme of Fund Manager attendance (paragraph 3.7.1 of 
Report FSD19034) be agreed as follows -

 15th May 2019 – MFS (global equities) - rescheduled 
 24th July 2019 – Fidelity (fixed income, multi-asset income and 

property) 
 27th August 2019 – Schroders (multi-asset income) 
 3rd December 2019 – Baillie Gifford (global equities and fixed income) 

(5)  the proposal to switch the current Schroders dollar fund to a sterling 
fund, brought forward by the Sub-Committee’s financial adviser for the 
Schroders Multi-Asset Income Fund, be agreed. 

84  PENSION FUND - INVESTMENT REPORT

Baillie Gifford presented their investment report covering management of the 
company’s Global Equities and Fixed Income portfolios for the Fund. At 
31st December 2018 the total value of both portfolios stood at £426,457,260 
which had since risen to some £460m by 28th February 2019. 

Baillie Gifford’s Global Equity portfolio under-performed against benchmark in 
the past 12 months (a volatile period) but over three years, five years, and 
since inception it has outperformed the benchmark. Stock is selected for the 
long-term with Baillie Gifford looking at the fundamentals of companies when 
selecting. A period of volatility provides a particular opportunity for this 

Page 107



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

6

approach long term and stocks in Naspers, Prudential and Ryanair were 
provided as examples. Baillie Gifford often look at companies where 
conviction is high but their share price has dropped.

To 31st December 2018, Fixed Income under-performed against benchmark 
over periods of five and three years and 12 months (the latter showing the 
greatest difference against benchmark). Against falling Fixed Income yields 
solid returns had been provided but recent periods were more challenging. 
Relative returns have also been impacted by emerging market holdings. 
However, over the long term there has been a positive selection in corporate 
bonds. Currently, the Fixed Income is allocated neutrally (50%/50%) between 
Gilts (government bonds) and corporate bonds.  

Although Baillie Gifford’s portfolio performance was volatile there is evidence 
the market is recovering and its value rose in early 2019. The long term 
benefit (of Baillie Gifford’s approach) had proved successful for the Fund. The 
Chairman considered Baillie Gifford a good example of active management 
and the Director of Finance indicated that £95m has been returned for the 
Fund through (Baillie Gifford’s) active management. 

On active managers being able to perform well during future volatility and 
recession, stock market returns are driven by big winners with rapid growth. 
Baillie Gifford also invests in stable companies such as Prudential. On global 
factors e.g. China (US/China trade war, slowing economy, reduced GDP etc), 
Japan adopting a “Japan First” approach, and considerations related to India, 
Baillie Gifford looked at fundamentals. China is urbanising, the number of 
patents has doubled, and there is growth in Artificial Intelligence (AI). China’s 
economy (2nd largest market), remains structurally strong and it was thought 
they will become the largest economy at a future point; Baillie Gifford will look 
at China more in 2019 and plan to open a Shanghai office. 

Concerning reliance on algorithms (with no real understanding of sentiment), 
Bailie Gifford saw an important human judgement aspect to what they are 
doing. It is also necessary to consider governance matters. Baillie Gifford 
management teams use intuition. However, Baillie Gifford is not complacent 
and use AI for assistance. On concerns about cyber hacking (e.g. of foreign 
governments and possibly world markets), this is tracked for companies in 
which they invest. Concerning any Chinese state interference in the stock of 
Chinese companies, Baillie Gifford understood the risk but there can be 
market opportunities if a Chinese company is supported by their state.  

On the Fixed Income under-performance, Baillie Gifford had difficulties 
concerning overseas emerging market government bonds. It was particularly 
recent performance where Baillie Gifford had struggled and steps had been 
taken to remedy the position (an individual with macro experience had been 
recruited as well as someone for active decisions). Baillie Gifford suggested it 
will take about two to three years to see a change in performance. 

When asked about future investment for the L B Bromley Fund, Baillie Gifford 
considered that equities provide the best returns (long- term), ten-years 

Page 108



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

7

providing a best indicator of yield. Over shorter time, there are benefits in 
diversification if interest rates stay low. Baillie Gifford has a range of Fixed 
Income Bonds; reference was made to looking at Corporate Bonds that 
outperform the market. 

Mr Arthur understood the Baillie Gifford’s Fixed Income Fund 
underperformance, but this provides an appropriate balance. Baillie Gifford 
had other ways to help with Fixed Income and the Chairman encouraged 
Baillie Gifford to come back with their thoughts. The Chairman referred to the 
sound relationship Bromley’s Fund has with Baillie Gifford and he offered his 
thanks and appreciation to Baillie Gifford for what they are doing for the Fund. 
Baillie Gifford also highlighted their Investment and Training seminar for 
LGPS funds from 9th to 10th October 2019 in Edinburgh.    

85  LBB RESPONSE TO DRAFT LGPS STATUTORY GUIDANCE 
ON ASSET POOLING CONSULTATION

Report FSD19032

Concerning the Government’s consultation document “Local Government 
Pension Scheme – Statutory Guidance on Asset Pooling”, appended to Report 
FSD19032, a proposed Council response was also appended to the report. 

The guidance will replace the section at pages 7 to 8 of Part 2 of the Guidance 
for Preparing and Maintaining an Investment Strategy, issued in September 2016 
and revised in July 2017, which deals with regulation 7(2)(d) of the 2016 
Regulations. It will also replace the Local Government Pension Scheme: 
Investment Reform Criteria and Guidance, issued in November 2015. 

Overall, the guidance is statutory but will require different levels of adherence. It 
uses ‘should’ or ‘may’ or ‘are expected’ and the statutory nature of some of the 
guidance is indicated by sections where pool members or pool companies ‘are 
required’ or ‘must’ comply. The draft guidance includes some aspects which 
reflect legislation or regulation and compliance with these is mandatory. Other 
aspects of the statutory guidance must be complied with, unless there are 
compelling reasons not to do so, which must be considered against the overall 
government framework for the LGPF. Some elements will be general guidance 
which must be considered and should be complied with unless there is good 
reason not to do so.

The Chairman encouraged Members to provide their comments on the draft 
response and to respond soon by email to himself and the Director. The 
Chairman, Vice-Chairman and Director would then meet to consider the 
responses before submitting the Council’s formal response. 

A Member commended the Director for the draft response as presented.

Page 109



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

8

RESOLVED that:

(1)  the response to the consultation document “Local Government Pension 
Scheme – Statutory Guidance on Asset Pooling” at Appendix 1 to Report 
FSD19032 be noted; 

(2)  the consultation document “Local Government Pension Scheme – 
Statutory Guidance on Asset Pooling” at Appendix 2 to Report FSD19032 
be noted;  

(3)  Sub-Committee Members email their comments on the draft response to 
the Chairman and Director of Finance;  

(4)  the Director of Finance, in consultation with the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman, submits the formal consultation response which will incorporate 
views expressed by the Sub-Committee; and   

(5)  the final consultation response is to be emailed separately to all 
Members of the Pensions Investment Sub-Committee and to Mr John 
Arthur, MJ Hudson Allenbridge, as investment advisor for the Fund. 

86  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) ORDER 2006 AND FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 
ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings 
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information.

The following summaries
refer to matters

involving exempt information 

87  EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 7TH 
NOVEMBER 2018 AND 14TH JANUARY 2019 (SPECIAL 
MEETING)

The exempt minutes of both meetings were agreed.

88  CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE ON EXEMPT MATTERS

The Chairman reported back on the LCIV Shareholder meeting, 31st January 
2019. Members also commented on a number of issues under Part 2 
proceedings.

Page 110



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

9

89  OPERATIONAL DUE DILIGENCE REVIEW OF LONDON CIV

Report FSD19031

Having previously considered a report on the due diligence investment review of 
the London CIV related to their Global Alpha Growth Fund, Members considered 
the report of an operational due diligence review on the London CIV. Both 
reviews were undertaken by the Council’s independent investment adviser. 

(Democratic Services Note: as the time was approaching 10pm, a vote was taken 
at the Chairman’s initiative on whether to adjourn or continue the meeting. Upon 
a vote, a majority of Members voted to continue the meeting and conclude the 
Sub-Committee’s business on the agenda).

RESOLVED that the commissioned MJ Hudson Operational Due Diligence 
Review of the LCIV be noted.

90  DUE DILIGENCE REPORT FROM LONDON CIV's DEPOSITORY 
(NORTHERN TRUST)

As depository for the LCIV, Northern Trust provides an independent oversight 
of assets to protect investors’ interests and provide confidence to them. At the 
Sub-Committee’s meeting on 13th September 2018, the LCIV’s Interim CEO, 
Mark Hyde-Harrison, indicated that it would be necessary to check whether a 
copy of the Depository’s report can be provided to Sub-Committee Members. 
Upon L B Bromley following up the matter, the LCIV’s Chief Operating Officer 
confirmed that the LCIV would be able to provide copies of the Northern 
Trust’s current annual Depository Review of the LCIV under private (exempt) 
proceedings of the meeting.    

The LCIV Chief Operating Officer, Mr Brian Lee, attended for the item and 
copies of the Depository Review were circulated to Sub-Committee Members 
at the start of the item. As previously agreed with the LCIV, and as a condition 
for Northern Trust agreeing to provide the report, the copies circulated for 
Member reference were collected upon conclusion of the item for custody by 
Mr Lee. Mr Lee also attended to answer questions as Compliance Officer of 
the LCIV. 

91  LCIV - CHANGE OF BUSINESS DESCRIPTION LETTER

Report FSD19033

Members agreed that there appeared no reason for this report to have been 
published under exempt (Part 2) proceedings and accordingly it was agreed to 
consider the matter under Part 1 (public) proceedings of the meeting.

At their meeting on 31st January 2019, the LCIV General Meeting passed a 
resolution to amend the clause within the LCIV shareholder agreement to vary 
the LCIV’s ‘business purpose definition’. This was to reflect the evolution of 
the pooling concept. The LCIV summarised the proposal as follows: 

Page 111



Pensions Investment Sub-Committee
5 March 2019

10

The change in the legal definition of business purpose in clause 2 is “simple but 
important”. It achieves consistency with current expectations of pooling. London 
CIV will now be defined as “the FCA authorised company” rather than the “FCA 
authorised operator of an ACS”. 

The current wording of Clause 2, of the shareholder agreement is “The business 
of the Company shall (unless and until otherwise determined in accordance with 
this Agreement) be confined to acting as the FCA authorised operator of an ACS 
to provide a collaborative platform through which the Administering Authorities of 
the LGPS funds can aggregate their pension monies and other investments. The 
Company will be branded as “London CIV”. 

The proposed wording of Clause 2, of the shareholder agreement is “The 
business of the Company shall (unless and until otherwise determined in 
accordance with this Agreement) be confined to acting as the FCA authorised 
company to provide a collaborative platform through which the Administering 
Authorities of the LGPS funds can aggregate their pension monies and other 
investments. The Company will be branded as “London CIV”.
 
The report to the LCIV General Meeting provided context and was appended to 
Report FSD19033. It was also requested at the General Meeting that all LCIV 
shareholders sign a letter (copy appended to Report FSD19033) confirming 
approval to amend the Shareholder Agreement in the way described in the letter 
and report to the LCIV General Meeting. The LCIV articles and Shareholder 
Agreement regulate operation of the LCIV. 

Although the agreement is not prescriptive on who should sign a document on 
behalf of shareholders it is common practice for the shareholder representative to 
have authority to sign such agreements. The shareholder representative can also 
seek the Sub-Committee’s view prior to any final authorisation. The Chairman 
confirmed that he would sign the document (Appendix 1 to Report FSD19033).
   
RESOLVED that:

(1)  the LCIV letter of 31st January 2019 requiring signature (Appendix 1 to 
Report FSD19033) be noted;

(2)  the report to the LCIV General Meeting on 31st January 2019 (Appendix 
2 to Report FSD19033) be noted; and 

(3) the Council’s LCIV shareholder representative be authorised to sign the 
LCIV letter. 

On concluding the meeting, the Chairman thanked Members and officers for 
their involvement on the Sub-Committee during the previous year. The 
Chairman also thanked MJ Hudson Allenbridge and a Member offered his 
thanks to the Chairman.  

The Meeting ended at 10.43 pm                                                 
Chairman

Page 112



1

APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 12.30 pm on 25 March 2019

Present:

Councillor Robert Evans (Chairman)
Councillors Nicholas Bennett J.P. and Melanie Stevens 

21  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN

RESOLVED: That Councillor Robert Evans be elected Chairman for the 
meeting.

22  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS

There were no apologies for absence.

23  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

24  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) 
ORDER 2006 AND FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of 
the items of business referred to below as it is likely in view of the nature of 
the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if 
members of the Press and public were present there would be disclosure to 
them of exempt information.

The following summaries
refer to matters involving exempt information

25  THIRD STAGE APPEAL AGAINST A DOMICILIARY ASSESSED 
CHARGE - MR E.C
Report FSD19041

The Appeals Sub-Committee met to consider a Third Stage Appeal against a 
Domiciliary Care Assessed Charge.

The Meeting ended at 2.03 pm.

Chairman

Page 113

Agenda Item 11



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 125

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 MARCH 2019
	5 ELECTORAL REVIEW
	GPL 160519 Boundary Review Size Submission

	6 LOCAL PENSION BOARD - APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS (PART 1)
	7 APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
	GPL 160519 Appendix 1 Outside Bodies Appointments

	8 WORK PROGRAMME AND MATTERS OUTSTANDING
	9 AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26TH FEBRUARY 2019, EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION
	10 PENSIONS INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 MARCH 2019, EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION
	Minutes

	11 APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE: MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25TH MARCH 2019, EXCLUDING EXEMPT INFORMATION
	13 LOCAL PENSION BOARD - APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS (PART 2)
	14 AUDIT SUB-COMMITTEE: EXEMPT MINUTES - 26TH FEBRUARY 2019
	15 PENSIONS INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE: EXEMPT MINUTES - 5 MARCH 2019
	16 APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE: EXEMPT MINUTES - 25TH MARCH 2019

